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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

"We are pleased to announce that we have delivered
another record trading performance for the Company
N 2010, with adjusted profit before tax increasing by
£5.3 milion to £33.6 milion.”

PETER JONES, Chief Executive
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Revenue

£1.9 billion
up 7.7%

FINANCIAL HIGHL

Revenue
(Millions of pounds)

IGHTS

Adjusted Profit
from Operations

£46.9m’
up 4%

*Adjusted Profit from Operations

{Millions of pounds)

Adjusted Profit
Before Tax

£33.6m
up 19%

*Adjusted Profit Before Tax
{(Milhons of pounds)

Basic Earmnings
Per Share

5.97p
up 114%

“Adjusted befors amortastion of ntangbile assets
excoptional terma and dabt lasus costa.

Baslc Earnings Per Share
{Pence)
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2010 REVIEW

"The new vyear has started well
with both the motor division
and parts division continuing
to make further progress.”

PHIL WHITE, Charrman

Lockers Stockport, Skada
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2010 REVIEW

“It is particularly pleasing to announce another
successful year despite operating against the
background of the difficult economic conditions

in the UK.”

PHIL WHITE, Charman

CHAIRMAN’S
REVIEW

| am dehghted to report that Lookers has delivered
another record trading performance for the year, improving
*adjusted profit before tax by over £5 million to £33.6 million,
an Increase of 19%., Itis particularly pleasing to announce
enother successful year despite operating against the
background of the difficult economic conditions in the UK.
This excellent performance demonstrates the strength of
our business in these times of economic uncertainty

Further to the restructunng of the mator dvision In 2008/9, we
have continued to review the performance of the dealerships
in our portfolio which led to the sale or closure of a number of
under performing businesses This has resulted in improved
overall group performance and a reducton in costs We
continue to benefit from our diverse business structure, with
strong performances from both the motor division and our
market leading independent parts dwision

The UK new car market ncreased by 1.8% in 2010, with
total ragistrations of just over 2 million. This was the second
lowest volume since 1935 despite the Government ecrappage
schema which accounted for 107,000 registrations  However,
the market displayed underfying growth net of the Governmaent
scrappage retal schems, of 12% Agamnst this background,
our motor dvision delivered another excellent performance,
with a signficant increase in profitabilty Further detalls of
our progress in the motor dmision are prowided in the Chief
Executive's Review

(Adjusted befors amortsation of a3asts,

- ional itens and dabt issue costs.)

Our Independent parts distribution business, which provides
an increasing and signficant contnbution to group eamings,
has had another excallent year The division now accounts for
In excess of 35% of group profits and produced record levels
of operatmg profit in &l of the three busmnesses that comprise
the dvision The parts dvision is of particutar importance to
the group as it produces a more resthent source of profit which
Is mot subject to the fluctuations in the new and used car
markets Furthermore, as each of the three businesses is the
national market leader in their sector of the markst, weareina
strong position to explont future growth opportunities through
the introduction of new products and services

QOur strong performance in 2010 demonstrates the strength of
the group's businesses with profits generated by dealership
aftersales and the independent parts division representing
59% of gross profit. Furthermore, the caprtal structure of the
group has strengthened significantly in the last two years and
the business 1s generating substantial levels of free cashflow
This mproved financial position has enabled the company
to recommence a progressive dividend pelicy The group is
therefore, in a strong position to continue to trade successfully
and develop further opportunities in afl areas ¢f the business

FINANCIAL HIGHUGHTS

Tumncver was 8% higher than last year at £1 9 bilbon *Adjusted
operating profit increasad to £46 9 million from £45 1 millon
last year and we are pleased to report that there were no
excepticnal charges n the year compared to £14 2 million
last year, which were primarily in relation to refinancing and
restructuring costs We have continued to focus on the control
of worlung capital and operational cashflow, which together
with cash raised from the sale of under performing businesses
or surplus properties, has reduced bank borrowings by £22 4m
in the year This has had a positive effact on net interest
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2010 REVIEW

"Our independent parts distribution business,
which provides an increasing and significant
contribution to Group eamings, has

had another excellent year.”

PHIL WHITE, Chairman

FPS

National Distribution Centre,

6
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charges which have reduced by £3 5m to £13 3m, a reduction
of 21% *Adjusted profit before tax was £33 6 milkion compared
with an “adjusted profit of £28 3 million last year Profit befora
tax increased to £31 1 millon compared to £115 milion in
the previcus year “Adjusted earnings per share wers 6 63p
compared to 7 32p last year, with basic eamings per share of
597p compared to 2 79p last year Earnings per share have
been affacted by the share issue in 2009 and further details
of the improvemnent in aarnings per share, after adusting for
the share 1ssue are provided in the Finance Director's Review
Cashflow for the year was particularly strong and signdicantly
improved compared to last year with net cash inflow improving
to £12 4 milion compared to £9 & millon in 2009 This had a
beneficial effect on the balance sheet where geanng improved
to 31% from 49% last year and net debt reduced to £56.6
million compared to £79 0 million &t the start of the year

DIVIDEND

Wa were pleased to anncunce in the half year report that, given
the encouraging results for that pernod and the strong financiat
postion of the group, the company intended to pay an intenm
dmdend of 06p per share, which was paid in November
This represented the restoration of a progressive dmdend
poticy which was previously followed by the company until
the difficult trading conddions in 2008 | am also pleased to
announce that following the strong performance of the group
In the year, we are proposing to pay a final dividend for the
year ended 31 Decemnber 2010 of 12p per share, gving a
total dnndend for the year of 4 8p per share This 1s subject to
approval by sharehclders at the Annua! General Mesting and
will be payable on 31 May 2011

OUTLOOK

Both divisions of the group have delivered excellent trading
performances in the year and with consurner confidence being
affected by general economic conditions, the new and used
car markets are bkely to continue at similar levels. Howaever,
the group has performed well in the difficult markets of the
last two years The motor division has a signficant bias to
aftersales which, together with the independent parts dmwision,

2010 REVIEW

Lockers Ford, Sheffield (South)

now represents 59% of gross profit This demonstrates the
restlience of the group’s busmess and the flexibility to adapt to
changig market conditions 1o help protect profitabality which
gwves us confidence for the future

We are continuing to focus on areas where we can improve
the performance of the group’s dealership operations to bnng
further mprovements in profitabity The independent parts
division continues to deliver record lavels of parformance
and the addtion of new product lines, mmproved faciliies
and investment in systems, wil bnng further increases in
profitability The group balance shest has been strengthened
significantly and will continue to improve with positive cashflow
Thase factors, together with substantial headroom in our bank
facilites, will allow us to take advantage of strategic growth
opportunities that may anse for both the motor and parts
dmision

The new year has started well with both the motor dmwsion
and parts dwvision continuing to make further progress We are
therefore confident that the company s well placed to deliver
future growth,

1 would like to conclude by thanking all our people at Lookers
for ther hard work and dedication m a challenging year,
without whom we would not have been able to deliver such
an excellent resutt

Phil White
Chairman
g March 2011

Lookers plc Annual Raport & Accounts 2010
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2010 REVIEW
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"Both our motor and parts dvisions
delivered record performances and
we continued to reduce cost,
improving efficiencies.”

PETER JONES, Chief Executive

Lookers Alfa Romeo, Sheffield




2010 REVIEW

“We have now had two successive years of
record profits which have been delivered in
difficult market circumstances.”

PETER JONES, Chief Executive

CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S
REVIEW

Both the motor division and parts dwvision have delivered
excellent trading performances in the year with the resuit
that the group achieved a 2010 *adjusted profit before tax
of £33.8 million. This is an increase of 19% compared to
the 2009 resuit of £28.3 million and is a record result for
the group.

The key factors m dnving performance recovery throughout
the business were

+ Sgnfficant increase in new car gross profit,

*  Growth in new car retall volumes strengthening
retail share,

* Strong growth i tumover and gross profit in our parts
dmvision and a strong aftersales performance in the
motor dwvision, and

*  Further leductions in the cost base

We have now had two successwve years of record profits
which have been defivered in difficult market circumstances
This gives us confidence that we can continue to grow the
business In 2011, despite short term market conditions
remamng challenging As econormuc conditions improve over
the medum term then the bustness s well placed to take
advantage from future growth in the new and used car markets
and increased demand for aftersalas and parts

OPERATING REVIEW

Motor Division

Our motor division consists of 119 franchise dealerships
representing 33 marques from 71 sites The business
generates revenus from the sale of new and used cars, vehicle
servicing and repar, and the sale of franchise parts in 2010
our motor dwision increased pmofit befora tax to £28 million
from £25 miltion in 2009

Ounng the year we have added 6 further franchises to existing
kications which increased tumover without a significant
increase In fixed costs, thereby mproving efficlency and
profitabiity of the ste We have established a new Ford
business in Sheffield to complement our exasting busmness
there and acquired the Aud) business tin South Dublin as a
precursor to estabhshing a flagship brand centre in Dublin,
whuch will have the potential to develop into & very profitable
business Wa have alse sold or clesed seven under performing
or loss making businesses which were non core to our
strategic development plan

Now Cars

The new car market increased by 2% to just over 2 million
cars, including addhional sales of 107,000 vehicles as a
result of the govemment scrappage scheme. Encouragingly
howaver, the market net of scrappage saw 12% growth, a
trend expected to continue in 2011

Group total new car sales of 58,380 was a reduction of
48% compared to 2009 levels, with sales of new retal
cars increasing by 1,661 unis to 39,280, an mcrease of
4 4% compared to a decrease m the UK market of 6 1%
strangthening our share of this sector of the market to 4 1%
In the flest sector we soid 19,110 cars comparad to 23,753 last

{Achated befors ermonisanon of intangible assets, axceptional items and debt issue costy)
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Vauxhall Meriva

Motor vehicle manufacturer brands

Alta Romeo

Aston Martin

Audi

Bentley

Chevrolet

Chrysler

Citroén

Dodge

Ferrarl

Fiat

Ford

Honda

Hyundal

Jaguar

Jeep

Kia

Land Rover

Lexus

Maserati

Mazda
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Mercedes-Benz

2010 REVIEW

Renault Wind

Nissan

Peugeot

Renault

Saab

Seat

Skoda

Smart

Toyota

Vauxhall

-
oo al=]=r|w|a]s |~

Volkswagen

-
—a

Volvo

w

Motorcycle

Yamaha XT1200Z Super Tenere

manufacturer brands

BMW

Yamaha
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2010 REVIEW

year, reducing cur share to 1 8% of the market, compared to
2 4% last year, the reduction in vohume due to reduced sales of
low margin fleet business, where the margins on specific deals
were reduced from 2009 levels.

Gross profit per unit for new cars mcreased by 13%, with
overall gross profit improving by £5 million despite the reduced
volume

Used Cars

The total used car market in the UK declined by approxamately
2% n 2010 Group sales of 41,053 wers a simidar volume
to 2009 levels and ahead of the market This was a positive
performance with volumes improving in the second half of the
year following lower demand in the first half as a result of the
adverse weather conditions at the start of the year Gross profit
per unit strengthenad by 1 4% a strong performance gven that
2009 margins benefitted from unpracedented pnce inflation

The used car market, which has annual sales of crca 6 7 miflion
vehicles, remains a huge area of cpportunity for the Group
Through improved scurcing and a broader stock mix on our
foracourts, we expect to take advantage of the stable market
condrtions in the used car sector to iImprove volumes and make
further improvements i gross margin

Aftersales

The aftersales business n the motor dvision continues to
gain share of the declinng vehicle pare within the 1 to 3 year
vehicle sector The group generated a small increase in ke
for ke aftersales revenue, which represents good progress
n a dechning market. However, whilst tumover has been
mairtamed this has been at the expense of a small reduction
in margin compared to last year, as we broaden our offering to
older vehicle servicing and repairs

We continue to winvest in technology and procedures to
further improve customer retention and average sales value
per customer vist. These intiatives include improvements in
our custormer relationship marksting centre processes, the
deployment of electronic heatth checks in all businesses, the
introduction of service plans for new and used vehicles together
with the implementation of a Loockers wamanty scheme All
these inttiatives help us to identify and optimise service and
repar requirements on all vehicles visiting us, which cominned
with our determination to deliver excellent customer service,
are key factors In strengtheming and optimising customer
retention,

12
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2010 REVIEW

Parts Division

Following a record year in 2009 our Independent aftermarkat
parts division has continued to perforn significantly ahead
of last year and has produced another record performance
The Parts Division operates through three comparues, each
supplying hard parts to the independent aftermarket, the
customer bass bheing pnmanly motor factors who, in tumn
supply the indepencent repair sector

The total vehicle car parc in the UK market is over 30 million
vehicles, with just over 6 5 million of these being in the
conventionally, franchise dealership dominated § to 3 year
vehicle parc  In contrast to the younger vehicle parc, the three
year plus vehicle parc in the UK continues to grow and the
outlook for cur independent parts operations is good as each
of the businesses continues to take an \ncreased share of a
growing markat cpportunity

Turnover for the divisicn increased by 14%, operating profit
Increased by 9% and “adjusted profit before tax increased by
11%, from £11 1 million to £12 3 million

FPS, the only national warshouse distributor of quality branded
automotive hard parts delivered strong rasults with tumover
increasing by 14% and profit befora tax ncreasing by 10% to
£8 7 millon Growth was achieved across all major customer
groups and has also supported by the introduction of new
product lines with further growth from product lines introduced

“FPS, the only national
warehouse distributor
of quality branded
automotive hard
parts delivered strong
results with turnover
increasing by 14%
and profit before tax
increasing by 10%
to £8.7 million.”

PETER JONES, Chief Exceutive

In previous years The natonal distnbution centre was extended
and a second warghouse was establishad tn Sheffield for bulk
storage and distnbution of a new product line Efficiency
benefits were also echiaved by an increase in electronic order
capture and information exchange so that e-busmess now
represents 60% of sales, up from 50% last year

Apec Braking, the market leader in the UK for 'dry’ brakung
(pads and discs) increased tumover by 9% Margins were
under pressure due to the weakness In stering n the earlier
part of the year, however, o spite of this, profit before tax
increasad sightly to £1 @ miflon Marging have since improved
due to r-sourcing discs and tumover growth was achieved
across all major customers and product lines

BTN Turbo 18 a leading supplier and provider of technical
support and senvicing of turbochargers and delivered another
excellent performance in the year Tumover increased by
28% and profit before tax increased by 24%, with incroased
sales to motor factor groups and growth across all major
customer sectors There is significant potential for further
growth opportunities with many specific customer prospects
in progress

OUTLOOK

Both the Motor Division and Parts Dmis:on have made a good
start to the cument year The motor dmsion has continued
to outperform the new retal car market and our used car

FPS
National Distribution Centre, Sheffield

14 | Lookers plc Annual Report & Accounts 2010




performance has shown further improvements We have a
heaithy order book for the delvery of new cars in the important
month of March and aftersales continue to perform wel! with
the result that the Motor Dvision 18 ahead of both budget and
pnor year Furthermore the independent parts division has
made further progress and s ahead of budget. We therefore
expect the rasutt for the first quarter to be ahead of both budget
and last year

{ em also pleased to annpunce that we completed the
acquisition of Get Motoring UK Limited on & March 2011 This
company trades as Vehicle Rental Services (VRS) and supplies
vehicles on short term leases to car rental operators in the UK
VRS complements our existing vehicle leasing businesses and
with anticipated annual EBITDA of approximately £3 rullion, it
helps to broaden the range of sources of earnings in the group

As we look forward in this new financial year, the new and
used car retail markets, whilst well below previous levels,
are ikely to continue to demonstrate conservative undertying
growth creating opportunmies for increased sales volumes
The aftersales bras to the motor division, and the group's
strong performance dunng the past two years, demonstrate
the strength of the busimess and leave us well positioned for
future growth

We continue to focus on areas where we can improve the
performance of the group’s franchised outlets and we will also

: 2010 REVIEW

focus on targeted and selactive acquisitons to further improve
our franchise representation.

The parts dwsion is & key factor that differentiates Lookers
In the retail motor gector and provides high quality earnings
that are not subjact to fluctuations in the new and used
vehicle markets, as well as makng 2 significant and ncreasing
contnbution to group profitabudity

The group balance sheet has been strengthened significantly
over the past two years and this, togsther with substantial
headroom in our bank facilities, enables us to pursue strategic
acquisition oppertunities in both the motor and parts divisions,
which will halp undermpin growth in future years

Peter Jones
Chief Executive
8 March 2011

Apec Braking

Loeoksrs ploc Annual Report & Accounts
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2010 REVIEW
“Turnover increased by 7.7% to

£1.9 bilion rom £1.75 bilion
last year, with positive growth
across the Group's business.”

ROBIN GREGSON, Finance Director

Femrari, 458 itafia
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2010 REVIEW

“Profit before tax was £31.1 million compared
to a profit before tax in the previous year of

£11.5 million.”

ROBIN GREGSON, Finance Director

FINANCE
DIRECTOR’S
REVIEW

Turnover increased by 7.7% to £1.9 billion from £1.75
billion last year, with positve growth across the group's
business. Qross profit of £261 million was level with last
year, although the gross margin was siightly reduced due
to higher average selling prices of both new and used
cars. Overheads reduced by £2.3 million in the year and
*adjusted profit from operations therefore Increased by
4% to £46.9 million, an increase of £1.8 million compared
£45.1 million in the prior year.

Total net interest costs reduced by 21% to £133 million
compared to £16 8 millon m 2009, with operational interest
charges, excluding mterest on pension scheme [liabdities,
reduced by 15% from £14 5 millien to £12 3 millon Interest
on group borrowings 1s based initially on fioating interest rates
supplsmented with interest rats hedges A signidficant element
of the term loan was coverad by interest rate hedges during
the year At 31 December 2010, 99% of the term loan was
covered by mterest rate hedges However, as the hedges were
establishad in 2007, when mterest rates were significantly
hugher than current levels, they have the sffect of increasing the
interest charge so that we do not get the full benefit of the low
base rate which is cumrently applicable m the UK.

("Acky batore

yof gible e330ts, excep ams and debt 5300 cOsts.}

*Adjusted profit before tax, amortisation, exceptional tems
and debt issue costs for the year increased by 19% to £33 6
mithon, & record result for the company and an improvement
of £5.3 million compared to the result for the previcus year cf
£28 3 million Profit before tax was £31 1 million compared to
a profit before tax in the previous year of £11 5 million. This
resulted in “adjusted earnings per share of 8 63p compared to
7 32p in the prior year and basic earnings per share of 5 97p
compared to 2 79p in the pravious year The calculation of
eamings per share has been affacted by the share issue in July
2009, which resulted n an increase in the weighted average
number of shares in 1ssue of 58% The reduction in the
adjusted eamings per share reflects the full year impact of the
addionat shares issued as part of the share ssue Adjusting
for the impact of the share 1ssus, the adusted earmings per
share for the pnor penod woukd have been 5 11p™, an increase
of 30%

No exceptional items were incumed in the year compared
to £142 milhion in 2008, which related to refinancing and
restructuring costs and this has had a postive impact on
retained profits and cashflow

TAXATION

Tha tax charge for the year of £8.2 milion compares to a net
tax charge of £€3.5 million in the pricr year and reflects a charge
of 26 4% of profit before tax. This is slightly lower than the
standard rate of corporation tax of 28%, as some tax benefit
has ansen this year from pnor year itams. The tax charge s
signficantly higher than that of 2009 as the pravious year's
charge was reduced by the impact of exceptional items and
prior year losses

rmm&buodon Adistad earmings and & weghtad sverage number of shanes in issue of 410,777 400
the weigh 208 NuTher of shares in sue during the prior paviod a3 adusted for the shares sued m the share isaue)

Lookers ple Annual Report & Accounts 2010
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2010 REVIEW

CASHFLOW AND CAPITAL EX(IPENDITURE

Cash generated from operations for the year was £49 3 miltion,
an increase of 145% compared to the operating cashflow in
2009 of £20 1 mililon Working caprtal increased by £1 5 miliion
with an increase in creditors of £41.3 million offsetting most of
the increase in stock of £44 9 millon Capital expendiure was
£12 3 milion compared to £7.2 million the previous year and
proceeds from the sale of properties were £7 0 million (2009
£2 5 milion} The majcrity of capital expenditure was on new
or improved premises for the parts division or improvements
to dealership properties

Loan repayments of £10 million were mada during the year
and net cash inflow after this was £12 4 mill:on, compared to a
cash inflow of £9 8 million in 2009 However as there were no
scheduled loan repayments in 2009 and 2009 benefited from
the proceeds of the share 1ssue, the cashflow In the current
year was significantly stronger This resulted in a reduction in
net debt of £22 4 million to £58 6 mllion compared to £790
millon at the start of the year, net debt being calculated as
gross bank bomowings less cash balances

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS AND FINANCING

The group has avalable bank facidtiea which consist of a
revolving credit facilty of £53 milion and a term loan of
£81 million. Interest 18 charged on both loans at a margin
of between 3% and 4% ebove LIBOR These facilties are
subject to quarterly covenant tests on interest cover, net bank
debt to EBITDA, total net debt to EBITDA and debt service
cash cover The covenant tests are set at levels that provide
sufficient headroom and flexibility for the group until maturity
of the facities in Aprll 2012 We are cumently considenng
the options for refinancing and are confident of & successful
outcoms later this year

At 31 December 2010 total faciities were £134 milhon of which
£57 milion, net of cash balances, was being utiised These
tacilities together with the group's strong operational cash flow,
indicate that the group has sufficient facilities avaitable to fund
its operations and allow for future expansion At 31 December
2010 gearing was 31% compared to 49% at 31 December
2009 and net debt to EBIMTDA was 1 04 compared to 1.5 last
year The group's undertying profitabllity and strong cashflow
should resuft In further reductions in borrowing In the future
and help ensure that the level of bomowing remains under
control and 15 at a reasonable level m relation to net assets
Further information on the gorg concem basts of preparation
Is inchuded In the principal accounting policies

PROPERTY PORTFOUO

The group has a policy of investing n freehold and long
leasehold property as the preferred means of providing
premisas for the car dealerships, where possible As a resuft
we have a significant and valuable portfolio of freehold and
long leaseholkd proparties where the net book value at 31

18
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Taggarts Peugeot,
Motherwell

2010 REVIEW

December 2010 was E1815 millon compared to £1834
million last year Of this amount £7 8 million has been disclosad
within current assets as assets heid for sale Short leasehold
properties had a value of £7.4 milion (2009 £8 5 milion)

DIVIDENDS

An mtenm dmdend of 06p per ordinary share was pad on
30 Nevember 2011 and the company 1S proposing to pay a
final dvidend of 1.2p per ordinary share This s subject to
shareholder approval at the Annual Genera! Meeting and will
be payabla on 31 May 2011 The company had previously
followed a progressve dvidend policy, until the difficutt trading
conditions of 2008 and this policy has now been restored
The final dvidend will represent a cash outflow of £4 6 million
whuch gives a total dividend for the year of £6 9 midhon.

PENSION SCHEMES

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes both
of which ara closed to entry for new members There has been
a recovery in the vatue of pension scheme asssts during the
year, which has resulted in a reduction in tha pension defictt for
both schemes The total deficit has reduced by £5 7 milion,
after deferred tax, so that the total defict is £198 million
(2009 £25.5 milion} The assessment of valuation 1s based on
several key assumptions prescnbed by accounting standards
and over which the directors hava very little control  Relatively
small changes in the bases of valuation can have a significant
effact on the calculated defictt, hence the movement in the
calculated deficit can be subject to tugh levels of volatility
The board continues to lock at its options to reduce both
the annual cost of operating both schemes and what actions
can be taken to reduce the defict on the schemes, thereby
reducmg exposure to movements in these habidties and
raducing the defict over the medwrn and longer term

VAT

The group has previously submitted a number of clams with
HM Revenue & Customs {{HMRC’) i respect of potental
overpayments of VAT relating to prior years K the group is
successful m its negotlations with HMRC, then there is the
potental for significant repayments to be received by the
group The nature of the process for negotiating these clams
with HMRC can take a considerable time so the tming of any
potential recept is uncertain and no benefit for any potential
repayment has besen included in the accounts and no income
will be included until the claims hava been agreed with HMRC

Robin Gregson
Fmnance Director

9 March 2011
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

1 PETER JONES Chisf Executve

Joined the Group and appointad to the Boanrd n May 2008 and
appomntad as Managing Diractor of the Motor Davsion in January
2009 Ha becama Group Chwef Exacutve on 1 Octaber 2009

2. ROBIN GREGSON Finance Dwector

Chartered Accountant Jomned the Group in May 2009
Previously Group Finance Director of Cardpoint plc
and CD Bramall pic, whom he joned from Deloitte

3 ANDREW BRUCE Managing Director, Motor Owision
Jomned the Group in 2000 and apponted to the Board in 2002
Formerly UK Sales Dwactor for Larkd Rover, Andy was appointed
to his current positon in March 2010 and has full accountability

for the Group's Motor Dmsion performance

4 TERRY WAINWRIGHT Operations Drector

Jomed the Group n 2004 following the acquisition of FPS
Appointad to the Board in October 2005, ha has responsibiity
for the Group's Parts Dmsion  He has over 35 years expeanence
n the Independent Automotive Aftarmarkat and has held senor
postions with Quinton Hazel, GKN and Urnupart Group
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS .

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

8. PHIL WHITE Chalrman ¥ A

Apponted in September 2006 Chisf Exacutive of National Exprass
for 10 years until 2007 He is also Chairman of Kier Group ple and
The Unite Group pk: and a Non-Executive Director of Stagecoach
Group plc

8 TONY BRAMALL
Appomtad n June 2006
Chairman and Dvector of CD Bramall plc until February 2004

7 JOHN BROWN* t ¥ A

Appointed n May 2005 Charterad Certified Accountant.
Currently Chairman of Norcros plc and a Non-Exacutive Director
of Henry Boot plc Until July 2005 he was Chief Executive

of Speedy Hre pic a company he founded in 1977 which

13 the market leader in its field

8. BILL HOLMES t ¥ A

Apponted in June 2008 Previously managing partner of the
Leads office of BDO Stoy Hayward, whom ha joned in 2002
from Arthur Andersen where he had been a partner since 1888
Pnor to joining Arthur Anderson he qualified as an Inspector

of Taxes with HM Reverwe & Customs

Sanior > [+ t of the Audit Committse
¥ Mamber of the Ram G 4 Member of the Nommaton Comerittes
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Directors’ Report

The Drrectors have pleasure in submitting their report which inchudas the Statements on Corporete Governance and the audited
financial stataments for the year ended 31 December 2010

1. ACTIVITIES

The rmain actrvihies of the Group are the sale, hire and mamntenance of motor vehicles and motorcycles, ncluding the sale of
tyras, O, parts and accessones

2. ENHANCED BUSINESS REVIEW
An analysis of the functional performance of the Group, along with an analysis of financial Key Performance Indicators ("KPls™)
13 provided on pages 4 to 19 The main financial KPIs cf the Group are revenua, profit before tax, earmings per share, geanng
and cash flow from operations The additional information raquired to be discloged in the Enhancad Business Review 18 shown
below
The Group's business activities, financial condtion, results of opaerations or the Company’s share pnce could be affected by any
or all of the following nsks or uncertainties

Global Economy

The new and used car markets are influenced by general economic conditions, including changes in interest rates, fuel
pnces, indirect taxation, the cost and availability of credit ang other factors which affect levels of consumer confidence The
demand for new cars 13 cyclical, which m some years will lead to reduced margins caused by oversupply This could have an
adverse impact on the earmings of the Group, although it 1s likely that this would be mitigated by potential increases m both
the used car market and the aftersales markst as customers substitute nearly new for new cars, or spend more keeping their
old vehicles roadworthy Despite the lack of available credst, together with a general feeling of uncertainty in the economy, the
Group’s business has proved to be resilient against this background

Manufacturers’ Financial Stability
The Group relies on its manufacturer partners for a significant proportion of its revenues and profits The failure of a manufacturer
could have a significant impact on the short-term profitability of a retaller partner The Group has attempted to mitigate this nsk

by having trading relattonships with a targe number of manufacturers, so that the snpact of any one manufacturer faling would
be lessenad

Liquidsty end Financing

The Group uses a number of methods to fund ts day to day business. These methods are {j) bank borrowings by way of commutted
borrowmng facilities (Banking facifities of £134 milion, matunng 2012), {ij} from manufacturer and thind party finance houses through
uncommitted stocking faciliies to fund the purchase of stock, and {fii) from supplers by way of trade credit. A withdrawal of any
of these financing facities or a failure to renew them as they expire could lead to a significant recduction in the trading ability of the
Group Howsver the share 1ssue in 2009 significantly strengthened the Group's balance sheet and provided a substantial source of
additional funding.

Exchange Rates

The Group 1s affected by currency fluctuations to the extent that a large proportion of our manufacturer partners edher source parts
or manufacture vehicles overseas. The fluctuation of the Euro agamnst Sterting has meant that most mamufactrers have had to
adjust prices despite the curment market conditions. The Board i3 aware of the uncertainties and seeks to mitigate this by ensuring
the Group retains a broad mix of the major manufacturers, both UK and overseas, to imit the effect.

Legal and Regulatory

In 2010 the updatad Block Exemption Regulation for aftersales was Implemented and the regulation for sales was extanded
to 2013, pending a revision tc a general exemption status by ensunng that our franchise businesses continue concentrating
on customer service, the Board believes that the Group will minmmse the mpact of these, and any future changes tc Block
Exemption rules

Competitive Nature of the Market

The motor vehicle distribution market is hughly competitive and comprises a small number of large deater networks, similar to
Lookers, down to a large number of much smaler operators In addition, the market includes internet-based dealers and private
indnvicluals The franchised businesses also compate in the aftersales market which compnses similar franchised businesses,
supply and fit chains, and a large number of small independent garages and bodyshops.

The market thersfore offers customers different options depending upon pnce and guality of service they wish to take, with
owners of new and nearly new vehicles tending to use the franchised businesses and owners of older vehicles tendmg towards
the small independent provider The Group's franchised businesses rely on the qualty of their customer serice and the ability
to adjust pricing, enabling them to react to local competitive conditions

The parts distnbution business operates in a very competitive market place, dominated by a faw large players. The differentiator
in this market 1s the quality of customer service offered by the Group’s businesses, which continues to give the competitive edge
where price differences would not be enough,
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2. ENHANCED BUSINESS REVIEW (conunued)

Government Legislation
in addition to Block Exemption nules noted above, changes to the Government’s transport pohicy could adversely affact the
Group's profitability f, as a result, customers choose to use alternative forms of transport

Information Systems

The Group 1s dependent upon a number of bustness cntical systems which, f interrupted for any length of time, could have a
materal effect on the efficient running of the Group's businesses The Board has implemented a senes of contingency plans
which would enable the Group to resume operations within a short space of time, thus mitigating the kkelihood of material loss.

Manutacturers' Influence

The Group's activities are a'so influenced by manufacturers in other ways The timing, frequency and efficiency of new
model roll-outs and changes in consumers’ perception of these models and brands could materially affect the Group’s
business Similarly, manufacturers use a senes of incentive schemes to support new car sales, warranty programmes
etc and changes or discontinuation of these schemes could also affect the Group’s business By representing over thirty
margues, the Group belisves that this diversity mduces the impact to the Group that manufacturers' nflusence could cause

3 DIVIDENDS AND SHARES
Ordmary shares of 5p each
An intenm dwvidend of 0 6p per ordinary share was paid on 30 November 2010 (2609 ni) The Directors are recommending
a final dividend of 1 2p per ordinary share (2003 mif) which will be payable on 31 May 2011 following approval at the Annual
General Meetmg, bnngmng the total dividend for 2010 to 1 8p (2009 nil)

4 DIRECTORS

The following were Directors of the Company at the end of the financial year and thereafter Thelr interests in the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company were as follows

311210 311209

Number Number
D C A. Bramall 85,444,637 85,444,637
J E Brown 98,318 98,318
A. C Bruce 349,271 349,271
R A. Gregson 200,000 200,000
W Holmes 36,666 36,666
P Jones 2,500,000 1,981,000
T M Wainwnght 159,467 159,467
P M. White 53,716 53,716
‘B Schumacker * 1,328,762

Details of Directors’ share options are shown In the Directors’ Remuneration Report
‘B Schumacker retired from the Board on 1 March 2010
All holdings are beneficial.

There was no change in the interests of the Directors in shares or share options of the Company between 31 December
2010 and 9 March 2011

The mid-market price of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2010 was 62p and the range during the year was 44 75p to
63 Sp

Directors retinng by rotation are A.C Bruce and R.A. Gregson and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

There are no cther contracts with the Company or its subsidianes in which a Director of the Company has any nterest, other
than service contracts (Executive Directors) or letters of appeointmant (Non-Executive Directors)

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the
year and remain 1 force at the date of this report
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§. APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

The Directors’ Remuneration Report will be lald before the Annual General Meeting for adoption as a separate resolfution from
the Auditor’s Report and the Company's accounts for the year ended 31 December 2010

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of the authcnsed and 13sued share capital, together with detarls of the movements in the company's issued share capital
during the year are shown in note 23 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which camy no right to fixed income
There are no speciic restrichons on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provigions of the Articles of Association and prevaling legislation The Directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the Company’s shares that may rasult in restnctions on the transfer of secuntles or on voting nghts

No person has any special nghts of control over the company's share capital and alf issued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appointment end replacement of Directors, the company Is governed by its Articles of Association, the
Combined Cods, the Companies Acts and related legislation The Articles themselves may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders The powers of Directors are descnbed in the Main Board Terms of Reference, copies of which are
available on request, and the Cerporate Governance Statement on page 29

Under its Articles of Association, the company has authonty to issue 480,000,000 ordinary shares

There ara also a number of cther agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of controt of the company such
as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease arrangemaents and employees’ share plans  None of these
are considerad to be significart in terms of thair likely impact on the business of the group as a whole

EMPLOYEES

Employess are encouraged to discuss with management any matters which they are concemed about and factors affecting
the Group In eddition, the Board takes account of employees’ interests when making decisions Suggestions from employees
ammed at improving the Group's performance are welcomed

A significant number of employees are remunerated partly by profit-related bonus schemes

The Group has a dedicated Intranet site “Insight” which keeps employees up to date with Group devefopments and activities
Communicating in this manner ensures a consistent message

Long service awards were made dunng the year to those staff with 25 years’ continuous service Special awards were also
made to those staff reaching 40 and 50 years’ service

All smployment policies have been updated to conform with currant legislation

It s the Group’s policy to encourage career development for all employees to help staff achieve job satisfaction and increase
personal motivation

ETHICAL EMPLOYMENT

It 1s the Group's policy to offer equal opportunities to disabled persons applying for vacancies and provide them with the
same opportunities for employment, traning, career development and promotion as are available to all employees, within the
hmitations of therr apttude and abilties In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure
that therr emiployment with the Group continues and appropriate arrangements are made

Employment within the Group 1s offered on the basis of the person’s ability to work and not on the basis of race, indwiduat
characteristics, creed or political opinion

SPECIAL BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

{a} Renewal of Directors' power to allot shares
The Special Business of the Annual General Mesting includes an Ordinary Resolution (Resolution 8) which seeks to renew
the authority conferred on the Directors at last year’s Annual General Meeting to allot shares

This authonty, which will expire on 25 November 2012 or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Company's next Annual General
Maeting, is to allot ordinary shares or grant nghts to subscnbe for or convert any secunties inte ordinary shares up to an
aggregate nommnal value egual to £6,393,543 {representing 127,870,860 ordinary shares), being approximataly 33% of the
Company’s ssued ordingry share capial as at ® March 2011 (being the latest practicable data pnor to the pnnting of this
document) As at 9 March 2011, the Company did not hold any shares in the Company n treasury

The Directors have no present intention of exarcising this authonty. The purpose of giving the Directors this authonty 1s to
maintain the Comparny’s flexibility to take advantage of any appropnate opportunities that may arsa.

) Disapplication of statutory pre-emption nghts
The Special Business of the Annual General Meeting includes a Special Resolution (Resolution 8) which seeks to renew
the authority conferred on the Directors at last ysar's Annual General Mesting to issue equity securities of the Company
for cash without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to ther existing shareholdings
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6. SPECIAL BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

The Companies Act 2008 requires that, subject to certain exceptions, before directers of a company can issue any new
shares for cash, the new shares must be offerad first to the existing shareholders proportionately This provision can create
considerable administrative difficulty, particularly if a rights issue is made, because of the entitliements to fractions of shares
which may arise and because of the restnctions imposed on the company’s ability 1o offer new shares to certan overseas
shareholders by the laws of relevant overseas junsdictions

This resclution seeks authority to disapply such statutory pre-emption rights Other than in connection with a rights issue
or other similar 1ssue, the authonty contained in this resolution will be limited to an aggregate nominal value of £959,031
{representing 19,180,620 ordinary shares), baing 5% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 9 March 2011 (being
the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this document)

This authornty will continua to provide the Diractors with flaxibility to act in the best interests of the sharsholders when
opportunities anse

The authority the Directors are sesking wiil expire on 25 November 2012 or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Company’s next
Annual General Meeting

The Board confirms its intention to adhere to the provisions in the Pre-Emption Group Statement of Pnnciples regarding
cumulative usaga of suthorities of no more than 7 5% of the 18sued ordinary share capital withun a rolling three year period

{c} Purchase of own shares
The Speclal Business of the Annual General Meeting includes a Special Resolution (Resolution 10) which seeks to renew
the authority granted to the Directors at last year's Annual General Meeting and to give the Company authonty to make
markat purchases of its own ordinary shares as permitted by the Companies Act 2006

The resolution imits the number of ordinary shares the Company can buy to a maximum of 38,361,262 shares representing
10% of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital as at & March 2011 (being the latest practicable date pnor to the printing
of this document) The authority also sets maximum and minimum prices

As at § March 2011, the Company does not have any outstanding warrants or options to subscribe for equity shares

The Company would only buy shares on the London Stock Exchange The authonty to repurchase ordinary shares will, ff
approved by the sharsholders, only be exarcised after careful consideration by the Board, and if such exercise would resuft
in an increase In earmungs per share and would be in the best interests of the shareholders generafly Shares so purchased
would be cancelled and the number of shares in 1s3ue reduced accordingly

The Diractors have no present intention to exercise this authonty but wish to retan the flexibilty to do g0 in the future

The authonty sought will expire on 25 November 2012 or, if earfier, at the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual General
Meeting

{d) Notice of General Meetings
The Special Business of the Annual General Meeting includes a Special Resolution {Resolution 11) which seeks to renew
the authonty given at the last Annual General Meeting to cafl genaral meetings on 14 days notice instead of 21 days

The Company currently has power under its Articles of Association to call general meetings (other than an annual general
maeting) on 14 clear days’ notice and would ke to presarve this ability In order to be able to do so, shareholders must first
approve the calling of meetings on 14 days' notica This resofution seeks such approval. The approval will be effective until
the Company's next Annual General Meeting, when it I8 intended that a similar resolution will be proposed

The shorter notice period would not be used as a matter of routine for general meetings, but only where the flexibility is merited
by the business of the meeting and is thought to ba to the advantage of the shareholders as a whole

(e} Adoption of new articles of association
It is proposed In resolution 12 to adopt naw articles of association (“the New Articles™ in order to update the Company's
current articles of association (“the Current Articlas™) The adoption of the New Articles 1s the final stage of an ongoing
process that ensures that the Company's constitution has taken account of changes in English company law brought
about by the Companles Act 2006 The principzl changes introduced in the New Articles are summarised below Other
changes, which are of a minor, technical or clanfying nature have not specifically been noted
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9. SPECIAL BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING {continued)

A copy of the New Articles, together with a marked copy of the Cumrent Articles showing the changes propesed to be made to
them, will be available for nspection dunng normal business hours on any weekday {excluding public holdays) from the date
of this report until the closs of the Annual General Meeting at the Company's registered office and et the offices of Addleshaw
Goddard LLP, Miton Gate, 60 Chiswell Street, London EC1Y 4AG The documents will also be available for inspection at the
AGM venue from 945 a m on the day of the meeting until the meeting’s conclusion

Summary of principal changes from the Current Articles

{# Authonsed share capttal and unissued shares
The Companies Act 2006 has abolished the requirement for a company to have an euthonsed share caprtal and the New
Articles reflect this Diractors will still ba Imited as to the number of shares they can at any tme allot because allotment
authanty {of the nature referred to in resolution 8) continues to be required under the Act, save in respect of employee
share schemes

(W) Authority to purchase own shares, consohdate and sub-dvide shares, and reduce share capital
Under the Companies Act 1985, a company required specific enabling provisions in its articles in order to purchase its
own sharas, to consolidate or sub-cdivide its shares or to raduce its share capital or other undistnbutable reserves, as
well as shareholder authority to undertake the relevant action The Current Articles include these enabling provisions
Under the Companies Act 2006, a company will only require sharehclder authority to do any of these things and it will no
longer be necessary for articles to contain enabling provisions  Accordingly the relevant enabling provisions do not
appear in the New Articles

(i) Chalrman’s casting vote
The New Articles do not contain a provision giving the ¢chairman a casting vote at a shareholders’ meeting in the event
of an equality of votes, as this is no longer permitted under the Companies Act 2006

{~v) Directors’ fees
The Current Articles set an annual mit of £2C0,000 on the aggregate amount of fees (as distinct from salaries and
remuneration) that may ba paid by the Company to the Directors for their services as directors This imit was set some
years ago and the Board feels that it should now be increased to £300,000 per annum i the New Articles, in order to
provide appropriate flexibility for the future.

{v} Objects clause
Prior to 1 October 2009, the prowvisions regulating the operations of the Company were set cut in tha Company’s
memorandum and articles of association The Company's memorandum contained, among other things, the objects
clause which set out the scope of the activities which the Company was authonsed to undertake Thus was drafted to
give a wide scope

The Compares Act 2006 has significantly reduced the constitutional significance of a company’s memorandum

The Act now provides that a memorandum will record only the names of subscribers and the numbser of shares each
subscnber has agreed to take in the Company Under the Act, the objects clause and all other provisions which were
contained in a company’s memorandum as at 1 October 2009 are now deemed tc be contained in the company’s articles
of association, but a company can remove thesa provisions by special resolution

Further, the Act states that, unless a company's articles provide otherwise, ts objects are unrestricted This abolishes
the need for companies to have objects clauses For this reason the Company is proposing to remove its abjects clause
together wath all other provisions of ts memorandum which, by virtus of the Companies Act 2006, are now treated as
forming part of its articles of assoctation As the effect of this resolution will be to remove the statement currently in the
Company's memorandum of assoclaton regarding iimited liabllity, the New Articles contain an express statement
ragarding the limited Liatility of shareholders

(v Statutory references and definitions
References to sections of the Companias Act 1985 will be replaced by refarences to the comesponding sections in the
Companies Act 2006

{vli) Voting by proxies on a show of hands
Tha Companies Act 2006 now provides that each proxy appointed by 2a member has one vots on a show of hands unless
the proxy is appointed by more than one member in which case the proxy has one vote for and one vote against if the
proxy has been instructed by one or more members to vote for the resolution and by one or more members to vote
against the resolution. It is proposed that the New Articles reflact this statutory provision
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10, DONATIONS
Charitable donations amounted to £13,745 (2009 £16,293) No polttical donations were made (2009 £nil)

11. AUDITOR
In the casa of each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report was approved
. a0 far as each 13 aware, there I1s no relevant audit information (as defined by the Companies Act 2006} of which
the Company's auditor is unaware, and
. each of the Directors has taken all the steps that ha ought to have taken as a Director to make himself awara of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor 18 awars of that information

This confirmation 1s given and ghould be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of $418 of the Companies Act 2006
Deloitte LLP have expressed ther willingness to continue in office and, n accordance with the Companies Act 2006, thew
re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

12. SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY
The Group does not formally follow the better payment practice code issued by the Department of Trade and Industry because,
n hna with industry practice, manufacturers insist upon direct acceas tc our bank accounts and they take funds to pay for bath
vehicles and parts when they fall due Other suppliers are genarally paid in accordance with therr terms of trading
At 31 December 2010, the trade creditors of the Group and the Company represented 32 and 30 days {2009 32 and 30 days)
purchases respectively

13. DERIVATIVES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's treasury activities are operated within policies and proceduras approved by the Board, which include dsfined
controls on the use of financial mstruments managing the Group's nsk The major financial nsks faced by the Group relate to
interest rates and funding. The policies agreed for managing these financial risks have remained the same since the begmnning
of the penod under review, and are summarised below
The Group finances its operations by a muxture of retained profits, bank borrowings, stock financing and commercial paper
To reduce the Group's exposure to movements in interest rates, the Group seeks to ensure that it has an appropriate balance
betwaen fixed and floating rate bomowings The Group uses interest rate swaps and collars in order to manage its exposure
to interest rata nsk, all such arrangements are approved by the Board in line with its treasury policies
The Group seeks to ensure continuty of funding by taking out certain borrowings which are repayable in instatments over
penods of at least thrae years Short-term flexiblisty is achieved by overdraft facilities
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency, nor does it undertake any trading in financial instruments
Refer to notes 15, 19, 20 and 30 of the notes to the Financial Statements for further information in this area

14, SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
©n 9 March 2011 the following sharsholdars, so far as tha Directors are aware, had an interest In 3% or more of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company

D G A. Bramall and Family 85,444,637 shares (22 28%)
Treffick Limitad 66,224,910 ghares (17 27%)
Schroders Investment Managemant Limited 14,078,469 shares (3 67%)

The Directors have not been notified of any other holders of 3% or more of the issued ordinary share capital

By r of the Board

L0y N .

R. A. Gregso,
Company S
9 March 2011
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COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors is collectively accountable to the Company's shareholders for good corporate governance and 18
committed to achieve comphance with the pnnciples of corporate governance set out n the 2008 Combined Code (the “Code™)
of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty

Throughout 2010 the Company has been in compliance with the Code provisions set out in 2008 FRC Combined Code on
Corporate Governance

The Board
The Board of Directors at the start of the financial year under review compnsed five Executive Directors and four Non-Executive
Directors B. Schumacker retired on 1 March 2010, J E Brown, P M White and W Holmes are considered to be independent
Non-Exscutive Directors
The Code raquires a balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors such that no individual or small group of indnaduals can
dominate the Board's decision-making process The number and quality of the Non-Executive Directors on the Board, with their
combination of diverse backgrounds and expertise, ensures this prnnciple is met
The Board has a documented schedule of matters reserved for its decision which includes the following

- agreeing objectives, policies and strategies, and monitoring the performance of the executve management,

- approval of the Group’s stratagic plans and business plans,

- approval of annual and ntenm results,

- deciding on major changes in organisation and the shape of the Group, including entry into new fields of operation and

departure from these which are no longer considered to be appropnate, and
- approving major individual capital projects

The Chalrman takes responsibllity for ensunng the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information  Monthly financial
information 1s provided to the Directors Regular and ad hoc reports and presentations are circulated, with all Board and committee
papers being issued in advance of meetings by the Company Secretary In addiion to formal Board meetings, the Chairman
mantalns regular contact with the Chief Exacutive and the other Directors to discuss specific issues In furtherance of ther
duties, the Directors have full access to the services of the Company Secretary and may take independent professicnal advice
at the Company's expanse The Board believes that given the expenence and skiils of its particular Directors, the identffication
of general training needs 13 best left to the indwidual's discretion i any particular developrment neead is identified through the
Board's formal appraisal process or by an iIndividual Director, the Company makes the nacessary resources available

Director Roles

P. M White 1s the Non-Executive Chairman and P Jones s the Chief Executive The Chaiman leads the Board and the Chief
Executiva manages the Group and implements the strategy and policies adopted by the Board The division of responsibilities
between the role of Chairman and Chief Executive has been set out In writing

J E Brown is the Senior Independent Director and his prime responsibility is to provide a communication channe! between
the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors and to ensure that the views of sach Non-Executive Director are given due
consideraticn The Company Secretary would minute any unresolved concems expreased by any Director

The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’ insurance in respect of legal action against its Directors

Attendance at Meetings
The following table shows the attendance of Directors at regular Board meetings and at meetings of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nommation Committees

Scheduled meetings held in 2010

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination

Number held 10 2 2 0
Number sttended

D C A Bramall 8 1* - -
J € Brown 10 2 2 -
A.C Bruce 10 - - -
R. A. Gregson 10 2" 2" -
W Holmes 2 2 2 -
P Jones 10 2* 2 -
B Schumacker (Resigned 1 March 2010) 2 - - -
T M. Wainwnght 10 - - -
P M White 10 2 2 -

* in attendance by Invitation of the Commuttee for all or part of the mesting
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APPOINTMENT AND SELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Appointments

The Code requires there to be a formal, ngorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of appropriate new Directors,
which should be made on merit and against objective critena. The Board has an established Nominations Committes for this
purpose and s terms of reference arg available from the Company Secretary

The Board approves the appointment and removal of Diractors

The Beard is aware of the other commitments of its Non-Executive Directors and is satisfiad that these do not conflict with their
duties as Non-Executive Directors of the Company

The service contracts of Exacutive Directors and the letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are avallable for inspection
at the Company’s registared office during normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting

Directors receive induction on their appomtment to the Board as approprate, covenng matters such as the operation and activities
of the Group (iIncluding key financial and business nsks to the Group's activities), the role of the Board and the matters reserved
for its decision, the tasks and membership of the prnncipal Board Committees, the powaers delegated to those Committees, the
Board’s governance policies and practices, and the Group's latest financial information The training and induction process for
Directors takes into account the development of the Group and apphcable governance standards Major shareholders are offered
the opportunity to meet new Directors as any appointments are made

The requirement to propese Directors for re-appontment at regular intervals 13 met by applying the Company's Articles of
Association These require that at each Annual General Maseting not lass than cne-third of the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation must retire, and that any Director, who was not appointed at either of the two previous Annual General
Meetings and who has served as a Director for more than two years since appointment or last re-appointment, has to retire

In accordance with the Code, each new Non-Exscutive Dlrector is appointed for a specified term, being an intial penod from
appointment ta the next Annual General Mesting where he will be subjact to ra-appointment at that meeting, for a further penod
ending not [ater than the Annual General Meating held three years thereafter Thera i3 a general essumption on the part of the
Board that independent Non-Executive Directors will not normmally be invited to stand for re-appointment after serving six years

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee compnses P M White, J E Brown, W Holmes, and was chared by P M White The Committee
reviews the size, structure and cornposition of the Board and Gommittees and makes recommendations to the Board with regard
to any changes that are considered necessary. The Committee also reviews the time required of Non-Executive Directors

The Nomination Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the formal selection and appointment of Directors and
considers succession planning for the Board [n considering an appointment, the Nomination Committee evaluates the balance
of skills, knowledge and expenence of the Board and prepares a descnption of the role and capabilities required for a particular
eppointment. In identifylng suitable candidates, open advertising or external search agencies will be used by the Committee,
where appropriate [t also considers potential candidates and recommends appomntments of new Directors to the Board The
appoirtments are based on ment and made against objective cnitena including the time available and commitment which will be
required of the potential Director

In choosing new Non-Executive Diractors, the Committes starts by obtaining the views of its professional advisors The Committee
has the powaer to amploy the services of such advisors as it deemas necessary in order to carry out its rasponsibilities and may retain
appropriate executive search consultants having prapared a job specification for the role

Porformance Evaluation Appralsal

The Non-Exacutive Directors are appraised indiwidually on an annual basis by the Chairman and the Board, led by the senior Non-
Executive Director, together appraise the Chalrman In 2010, all members of the Board completed a questionnaire regarding Board
processes and performanca The Chairman reported the collective findings to the Board and agreed actions required The Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Chairmen appraise their performance in a similar way on an annual basis

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Qoing Concemn

After making enquines, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the ttme of approving the financial statements, that there is a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future.
In forming this view, the Directors have reviewed trading and cashflow forecasts and have also taken into consideration that the
Group's banking faciliies remain avatable to them and are appropriate given the Group's cumrent trading and mecium-term plans.
The Company and the Group meet their day to day working capital requirements through short-term stocking loans, the revohang
cred:t facility and its medium-term fundtng requirements through a term loan At the year and the medium-termn banking facilities
included a revolving credn facilty of up to £53 3 milllon and a term loan totalling £80.9 million, providing total facilities of £€134.2
milkon These faciliies are due for renewal in Apnl 2012 and the Directors are currently considenng their options for refinancing
Further detalls sunounding the Directors’ rationale regarding the going concern assumption are included 1n Principal Accounting
Policies on page 40 For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises J E. Brown and W Holmes and throughout 2010 was chaired by J € Brown The Committee met
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- Statements on.Corporate Governance

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Commuttes (continued)

twice dunng 2010, with the Chief Executve, Finance Director and the intemal and external auditors attending as required

The Audit Committea has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control during the year ended 31 Decamber 2010 This
has included consideration of Group-wide nisk assessment and of mnternal audit and internal control exercises undertaken throughout
the Group The Audit Committee has also considered meports from intemal and extemal auditors. The Audit Committee has reported
the rasults of its work to the Board The Board has considered these raports when undertaking its review of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internat control

The Audit Committee Is responsible for reviewing a wide range of financial matters inctuding the Interim and year end financial
statements, matters relating to the sxternal audit, corporate governance matters and monltoring tha Group's Intemat and operational
controls The Audit Committee’s terms of referance are avaulable from the Company Secratary

The Audit Committes has considered the arrangements for the reporting by employees of concerns about pessible improprieties In
financial reporting or cther matters, a3 sst out in the Employee Handbook, and has concluded that there is a reasonably clear and
adecjuately defined system for reporting of concerns This policy and system of reporting will be roviewed annuaily

The auditor is permitted to provide non-audit services that are not, or am not perceived to be, in conflict with auditor independence
Part of the Committee’s responsibility i relation to external auditor 1s to review the nature of thelr independence and the extent of
the non-aucht services they provide The report from Deloitte LLP confimming therr independence and obyectivity was reviewed by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Finance Director The leve! of fees paid to Delcitte LLP for non audit services has been
considered by the Audit Committee and is not perceived to ba In conflict with auditcr independence

Deloitte LLP has been external auditor for five years The Audit Committee assesses and considers the frequency of changing auditer
based on thelr assessment of the audit No contractual obligations exist which restnct the Audit Committee’s choice of Auditor

The Committee conducted a formal evatuation of the effectiveness of the external audrt process and held independent meetings
with the external auditor, and has reported on its conclusions to the Board The Committee has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of the external auditor Non-audit services are placed with whichever firn is believed to deliver the best value for
money, having regard to our external auditor's independence If Deloitte LLP wera to be appointed

Internal Control

The Code requires the Company to matntain a sound system of Internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets The Board must review the effectiveness of the system at least annually, covenng all matenal controls, including
financial, operational and compllance controls and risk management systems, and repart to shareholders that it has done so The
Tumbull Report, adopted by the UK Listing Authority, provides guidance for compilance with that part of the Code

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for identifying. evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the
Company Steps are beng taken to embed intema! control and nsk managemernt further into the operations of the businesses and to
deal with areas of improvement which come to management’s and the Board's attention. The process has been n place throughout
the year and up to the date of approval of the Anrual Report and Accounts 1t 18 regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with
the guidelines set out In the Turnbull Report

The Board confirms that the actons it considers necessary have been or are being taken to remedy such failings and weaknesses
which it has determined to be significant from its review of the system of intemnal control This has involved considering the
matters reported to it and developing plans and programmea that it considers are reasonable in the circumstances The Directors
acknowtedge that they are responsible for the Group’s system of internal contral, for setting policy on internal control and for
reviewing the effectiveness of mternal controt The role of management 1s to implement Board pelicies on risk and contral The system
of internal control Is designad to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business abjectives, and can only provide
raasonable, and not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Group has an internal audit function that reports to the Audit Committee Detailed control procedures exist throughout the
operations cf the Group and compliance Is monitored by management, intamal auditors, and, to the extant that they consider
necessary to support therr audit report, external auditor

Relations with Shareholders

The Company places considerable importance on communications with shareholders and responds to them on a wide range of
s3ues It has an ongoing programme of dialogue and meetings with major institutional shareholders, where a wide range of relevant
issues including strategy, performance, management and governance are discussed The Chalrman makes limsalf available to meet
any major shareholder, as requirad

All Company announcements are posted on our website www lookers co uk as soon as they are released Our website contains
a decicated invastor relations saction, www lookarsplc com, with an archive of past announcements and presentations, histoncal
financial performance, share price data and e calendar of events.

The pancipal communication with private investors is through the Annual Review, the Interim Report and the Annual Genaral Meeting

A prasentation is made at the Annual Ganaral Meeting to facilitate grsater awareness of the Group's activities Shareholders are given
the opporturity to ask questions of the Board and of tha Chairman of each Board Committee and to meet the Directors informally
after the meeting Separate resolutlons are proposed for each item of business and the ‘for', ‘against’ and 'vote withheld' proxy votes
cast in respect of each resclution proposed at the Meeting are counted and announced after the shareholdars present have voted
on each resclution Notice of the Annual General Meeting 13 posted to sharsholders at least twenty one days before the date of the
Annual General Meeting
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Corporate Social Responsibility Review

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Mamn Board of Lookers 18 responsible for setting the Group's strategy, values and standards regarding social, emarorunental
and ethical issues. It delegates the responsibility for implementing strategy and instils values and standards throughout the Group's
busnesses The operating comparues each include social, environmential and ethical 1ssues in ther nsk assessment processes This
enables the Man Board to ensure that any potential problems are identified and contingency strateges are in place

Lookers end the Environment

Lookers’ actvities do have an impact on the environment. The Group i3 keen to fulfil s legal obiigations on this issue and has a
Group-wide environmental policy In place The nead to deal with contamination, waste oll and asbestos issues are at the forefrort
of the Group’s concerms

On a wider lavel, Lookers supports a number of industry intiatives and the Group also engages in all emironmental issues raised by
stakeholders, consumers, suppliers, shareholders and employees

The Group aims to encourage the reduction of energy and water consumption and actively investigates employees' suggestions to
help reduce the amount of waste An electnical testing monitoring regime s in force throughout the Group  Use of the latest bulkding
materials ts made in tha construction of new sites and the refurbishment of existing locations For instance, modern heating controls
include both timers and thermostats

Lookers aims to improve its energy, water and fue! efficiency over the coming year throughout the Group's operations As part of this
policy, the Group is working in partnership with a major energy management systems company to help create a better environment
by reducing the amount of harmful emissions released into the atmosphere for everyone's future bensfit Savings of up to 30% in
annual heating spend can be achieved as well as producing a comfortable working emaronment for staff The systemn 13 recognised
for ISO 14001

Lookers and Ethics

Lockers believes that integnty n s relationships with customers, suppliers, staff, shareholders, regulatory agencies and the
community is important and gamns the respect of all its stakeholders. Treating Customers Fairly is now embedded mto the Group’s
ethos and will continue to ba part of the Group's culture

Lookers makes every effort to ensure its people are aware of these expectations and that they contnbute to the high standards
requirad of them This statemment, together with Lookers' corporate values, is at the heart of how Lookers conducts its business,
externally in its relatonships with stakeholders and intemally through its pesfomances management and promotion processes

Lookers as en Employer
Peaple are crucial to Lookers' success This approach s raflected in Lockers' policies on recrutment and retention, staff share
scheme, staff communication, and health and safety

Recruitment and Retention

Lookers ensures that it has fair employment terms for its pecple. Employment handbooks set out formal policies for key issues such
as equal opportunities, disciplinary and gnevance procedures, sexual, religious and racial herassment.

Lookers' Human Rasources Director 13 responsibie for raising smployment standards end implementing best practice employment
policies throughout the organisation, Performance reviews ara conducted at lsast once a year and include an assessment of each
indmvdual’s traming needs.

Lookers has a comprehensive training programme for its people which has receved industry recogrubon n the form of national
awards for the automotive industry

Staff Commumication

Lookers believes that its people have a nght 1o be kept ifformed Regular discussions take place to keep people updated and to
seek out therr ideas and opinions

Face-to-face dialogue between menagers and staff takes place regularly; information 3 commurucated through Lookers' mntranet,
which is used by over 50% of employees every week. Lookers also uses newsletters and updates to keep its staff informed

Health and Safety

Lookers aims to do all that Is reascnably practicabls to ensure the health, safety and welfare of ts people, and cthers whe may be
affactad by fts activites The Man Board maintains uttimate responsibility for health and safety issues at Lookers with the manager
responsible for the day-to-day responsibility, supportad by all levels of management. This policy 1s defined in the Group's Health and
Safety policy statement and all staff are issued with, or have access to, a datailed health and safety gude

The statistics for the Group, under UK Health and Safety regulations for the year ended 31 December 2010, are set out below

Number of fatalitiss -
Injunies resulling in absence over three days 15
Major injuries reportad undar RIDDOR® 1
Dangerous occurrencas reported under RIDDOR" -
Number of enforcement notices ssued by HSE -
Number of prohibitlon notices Issued by HSE -

*Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulatons 1995

Lookers and the Community
Lookers s commutted to playing an active e m the communibies it serves. All Lookers' busmesses operate ther own community
programmas and fund rassing charity events. In addition, some charities are supported at a Group level such as the motor trades’ BEN
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schadule 8 of the Accounting Regutations under the Companies Act 2008
The report also mests the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describes how the
Board has applied the pnnciples relating to Directors’ remuneration in the Combined Code As requrred by the Act, a resolution
to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General Maaeting of the Company at which the financial statements will be
approved The Act require the auditors to report to the Company’s members on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and to state whether in their opinion these parts of the report have been properly prepared » accordance with the
Accounting Regulations The report has therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and unaudited information.

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttes 1s responsible for reviewing and recommending the framework and policy for remuneration of
the Executive Directors and of semor management The Remuneration Committee’s terms of referencs are available from the
Company Secretary The members of the Remuneration Committee during the financial year were W Holmes (Chairman), J E
Brown and P M White W Holmes and J E Brown are independent Non-Executive Directors of the Board

Remuneration Policy

The policy of the Committee is to ensure that the Directors are farly rewarded for ther indrvidual contnbutions to the Group's
overall performance and to provide a competitive remuneration package to Executive Directers, including long-term incentive
plans and granting of share options to attract, retain and motivate individuals of the calibre required and ensure that the Group ts
managed successfully in the interests of shareholders

When selacting appropriate comparisons, the Committee has regard to the Group's revenus, market worth and business sector
No Director plays a part In any decision ebout his own remuneration Full detals of Directors' remuneration, fees and share
options are set out on pages 35 and 36. Directors retinng by rotation are shown in the Directors' Report on page 24 None of the
Executive Directors currently has any long-term incantives other than the Performance Share Plan (“PSP7}, or the executive share
option scheme which was approved at the Annual General Meeting in May 2008

The Remuneratton Committee, In determining remunerat:ion policy, has given full consideration to Section B of the best practice
provisions eannexed to the Listing Rules of the Financial Sarvices Authority

The Company's policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance
related The annual bonus scheme enables the Executive Directors to earn annual incentive payments on a shding scale up to
110% of therr basic salary The main elements of their remuneration package are set out below

Basic Annual Salary and Benefits In Kind
Each Exsecutive Diractor's basic salary Is reviewed annually by the Committee In deciding upon appropriate levels of remuneration,
the Commuttee has regard to rates of pay for similar positions in comparable companies

Annual Bonus Payments
All Executive Directors participate in an annual bonus scheme payable upon the Group exceeding predetermined profit level
targets and at the discretion of the Remuneration Committes Bonus payments ara not pensionable

Pension Arrangements

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme for its full-time employees and A. C Bruce remains a member of this scherme which
provides a pansion of up to two-thirds of final pensionable salary on retirement at age 60 years The defined benefit scheme also
provides lump sum death-in-service benefit and pens:on benefits based on final pensionable satary P Jones, R. A. Gregson and
T M. Wainwnght participate in monaey purchase arangements

Share Option Incentives

The Company operated three share option schemes under which the Executive Directors and senior executives can be granted
discrationary options from tme to time by the Board together with a savings related share option scheme (“SAYE") open to
employees in general These three schemes were approved at the Annual General Meeting in May 2008
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

UNAUDITED INFORMATION {contnuea}

Performance Share Plan

Selected Executive Directors as detailed on page 36 participate in the PSP, which was approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in May 2008

Annual awards under the PSP are in the form of a contingent grant of shares, the vesting of which will be subject to tr-annual
performance criteria. For the 2008 award the performance period is for the 3 years to 31 December 2010 based upon adjusted
earnings per share growth targets There was no award in 2609 or 2010

Performance is measured on earmings per share growth over the three year penod and shares will vest where the growth in
eamings per share of the Company has exceeded the growth in the Retal Price Index (“RPI") by 10% or more Participating
Executives will raceive a percentage of the contingent share award dependent upon the leve! of growth over and above the RPI
At 10% over the RP|, participating Executives may eam 25% of the contingent share award A stepped scale is then applied up
to a maximum of 120% of the contingent award if the increase in earnings per share over the penod 13 50% over and above the
RPI The relevant percentage will be applied to the Executives’ contingent share award at the end of the performance penod to
amve at any shares to be issued

Directors’' Contracts

The details of the Directors’ individual sennce contracts are sat out in the table below In the event of terrmination of an Executive
Director’s service contract, depending upon the circumstances, the Company may be liable to pay compensation to the Executive
Director equivalent to the salary that would have been received during the contract pencd, togather with any bonus earned on a
pro rata basis to the date of termination  The Company’s pelicy in the event of the termination of an Executive Director's service
contract i1s not to make any payment to an Executive Director in excess of therr contractual entitlement and so aim to ensure that
any hability 13 mitigated to the fullest extert possible.

Date of Contract Notice Period Contractual Termination Payments
P Jones 22 February 2010 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
R A. Gregson 22 February 2010 1 Year Basi¢ salary and benefits for unexpired term
B Schumacker 11 May 2006 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
A C Bruce 11 May 2008 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
T M Wamnwright 14 December 2006 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term

All contracts are rolling contracts

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors 13 determined by the Board within the irmits set out in the Articles of Association
and as previously approved by the members Non-Executive Directors cannot participate in the Company’s shars option
schermes and are not eligible for pension arangements
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

UNAUDITED INFORMATION (continued)

Performance Qraph

The following graph shows the Group's performance, measured by tota! shareholder return  The Group has been benchmarked
agamnst the FTSE Small-Cap Index which i3 considered to be an appropriate companson to other public companies of a similar
size

AUDITED INFORMATICN
Dwectors’ Emoluments

Pension Pension
Annual Benefits- 2010 2009  Contributions  Contributions
Foes Salary Bonus In-kind Total Total 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
P M Whne 102 - - - 102 110 - -
P Jones - 307 323 i 831 520 61 48
B Schumacker (1} - K] - 1 32 aaz 1 40
A_C Bruce - 220 229 8 457 384 19 37
T M. Wamwnght - 188 99 10 297 303 24 23
R A. Gregson - 230 242 3 475 293 46 29
J E Brown 41 - - - 41 37 - .
D € A Bramalt 36 - - - 36 as - -
W Holmes 36 - - - 36 35 - -
Total 215 976 893 23 2,107 2,099 151 177

(1) Retred from the Board on 1 March 2010

Benefits-in-kand in¢clude tems such as a company car, fuel and life assurance prermiums Details of Directors’ shareholdings are
shown in the Directors’ Report on page 24 The relative importance of performance and non-performance elements of remunaeration
are set cut within the Remuneration Policy
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

AUDITED INFORMATION (continued)

Directors’ Pension Entitement
Set out below are details of the pension benafits to which each of the Executive Directors s entitled

Transter vakus
Additionsl acerued 31 December 2010
benstits eamad Accruad  or date of transferring Transfer value  Increase/{decredse)
in the year entitement out of the scheme 31 December 2009 in transfer valus
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A. G Bruce 2 31 422 375 47

Pension increases are in line with Limited Pnce Indexaton Death-in-service pays at four times salary and death-in-retirement
pays benefits at 50% The accrued pension entitiement is tha amount that the Director would receive if he ratired at the end of the
year The increase in the transfer value i3 the difference between the accrued benefit at the year end and that at the previous year
and All transfer values have been calculated on the bas:s of actuanal advice in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11
The transfer values disclosed above do not represant a sum paid or payable to the indvdual Director Instead they represent a
potential labilty of the pension scheme

bensfits epmasd in the increase in

year (exciuding Inflation) accrued benefits

£000 £000

A C Bruce 2 31

Directors’ Share Options
Aggregate emaluments disclosed do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company
granted to, or held by, the Directors Details of the Directors’ share options are as follows

Earliest Exercise
Date of Exercise Expiry price Numbaer at Lapsed Number at
Scheme Grant Date Date {pence) 1 Januery 2010 I Yesr 31 December 2010
B Schumacker PSP 236 2008 2362011 2262018 - 276,000 - 276,000
A.C Bruce PSP 23 6 2008 2362011 2262018 - 276,000 - 276,000
T M Walnwnght PSP 236 2008 236 2011 226208 - 276,000 - 276,000
P Jones PSP 23 6 2008 236 2011 2252018 - 161,000 - 161,000

The only options outstanding at 31 December 2010 are in respect of the PSP Details of perfformance conditions attaching to
the PSP are set out on pages 33 and 34

The rmd-market price of the crdinary shares at 31 December 2010 was 62p and the range during the year was 44 75p 1o 63 5p

Qains made by Directors on Share Options
There were no gains made by Directors dunng 2010 (2009 €nil)

Directors’ interests in the Performance Share Plan

Bonuses under thse PSP are payable in shares, with a conditional award of shares capable of being made annually, based on
the Executive's salary at the start of each performance penod Details of the performance condition of the PSP ¢an be found on
pages 33 and 34 Details of the conditional awards to the Executve Directors under the PSP are shown in the table of Directors’
share options above

The Company’s Register of Diractors’ Interests contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe

By Order of the Board
X2
i R. A Greg
Company Seci
9 March 2011
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responstble for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and
regulatrons

Company law requires the Directors to prepars financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemationzal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Limon and Article 4 of the !1AS Ragulation and have alss chosen to prepare the Parant Company financial statements under
IFRSs as adopted by the EU  Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they
gwve a true and farr iew of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Parent
Company for that panod  |n preparing these financial statements, Internationat Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

. property select and epply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that prowvides
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

. provide additional disglosures when comphance with the specific requirements

n IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the mpact of particular trangactions,
other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance, and
. make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a goihg concem

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and discloss with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Comparyy and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

The Biractors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information included on the
company's wabsita Legisfation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemmation of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement

Wa confirm that to the best of our knowledge

. the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
give a true and fair view of the assats, liabilities, financlal position and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whaole, and

. the management report, which 13 incorporated nto the Directors’ report, includes a farr review of the development
and performance of tha business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as & whole, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

By Order of the Board gf
L=

P. Jones R. A. Gregs¢n
Chief Executive Finance Di
9 March 2011 8 March 2011
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Independent Auditor's Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LOOCKERS PLC

We have audited the financial statemants of Lookers plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 which compnse the Principal
Accounting Policies, the Group and Parent Company Income Statements, the Group and Parent Company Statements of
Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements,
the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1to 33 The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (JFRS$) as adopted
by the European Union

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accerdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members thoss matters we are required to
stata to them in an audior's report and for no other purpoese  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opimons we have formed

Respective reasponsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responstility is to audit and express an opimon
on the financia) statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Beard's Ethical Standards for Audrtors

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whather caused by fraud or error This includes
an assassment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group's and the parent company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon

. the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affars
as at 31 December 2010 and of the group’s and the parent company's profit for the year then ended,

. the financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,

as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the tAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In our opmion

. the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, and

. the nformation: given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are

prepared is consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Woe have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Gompanies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, m our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent company financial staternents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not
n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. wé have not recerved all the information angd explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

. the directors’ statement, contained within the Dwectors’ Report, in relation to going concem,

. the part of the Corporatea Governance Statement relating to the company’s comphance with the nine provisions
of the June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review, and

. certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors' remuneration

Patrick Loftus BSC ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and behalf of Deloitte LLP

Charterad Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Manchaester, United Kingdom

9 March 2011
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Principal Accounting Policies

The pnincipal accounting pokcies adopted in the preparation of these financial staterments are set out below These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, unless stated otherwise

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Lookers plc :s 8 company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registerad
office is grven at the front of these accounts. The nature of the Group's operations and it principal activities are set out 1n
note 1 of the Directors’ Report.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted by the Eurcpean Union. Therefore the group financial statements comply with article 4 of EU IAS Regutation
as adopted for use in the EU

The Group has adopted Standards and Intarpretations issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (LASB) and
the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committea of the 1ASB Individual standards and interpretations have
to be adoptad by the European Commission [EC) and the process leads to a delay between ths issue and adoption of new
standards and in some cases amendment by the EC

International Financial Reporting Standards are subject to ongoing amendmant by the IASE and subsequent endorsement by
the EC and are therefore subject to change

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, axcept for the revaluation of certain properties and
financial mstruments

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In the current year, IFRS 3 ‘Business combinations’ (ravised 2008) and IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial
statements’ {revised 2008} have been adopted Thess have had no significant impact or this sst of financial statements

At the date of authonsation of the financial statements the following standards and interpretations which have not been
apphed in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective

IAS 12 Deferred Tax. Racovery of Underlying Assets - Amendment
IFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets - Amendment

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement - Amendment
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equrty Instruments

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future penods will have no matenal tmpact
on the financial statements of the Company.

Going Concem
This financial information has been prepared on a going concermn basis which the Directors believe to be appropnate for the
reasons set out below

The Company and the Group mest theirr day to day working capral requirements through short-termn stocking loans, the
revolving credrt facility and ts medium-term funding requirements through a term loan

At the year end the medium-terrn banking facilities included a revolving credit faciity of up to £53 3 milhon and a term loan
totalling £80 9 million, providing total facilities of £134 2 milllon These facilties are due for renewal in Apnl 2012 and the
Drectors are currently considering the options for refinancing

In addition to the total facility imit, the revised facilities include certain covenant tests The failure of a covenant test would
render the entire facilities repayable on dermand at the option of the lenders

The Directors have assessed the future funding requiremaents of the Group and the Company and compared them to the level
of committed available borrowing faciities. This assessment included a detaited review of trading end cash flow forecasts for
a penod 12 months from the date of this annual report which project that the total revised facility imit 13 not exceeded over
the duration of the forecasts and forecast covenant levels are met Whilst acknowledging the uncertainties in the operating
environment, as discussad m The Directors’ Report, the Cirectors have prepared forecasts that make assumptions Iin respect
of future trading conditions and in particular to volumes and margins of new and used car sales, aftersales and parts,
achieving operational mprovements and cost reductions

In addition to this, the nature of the Group's business is such that there can be variation in the timing of cash inflows as
trading pattems develop, in particular the March and September registration pencds The forecasts have been prepared on
the assumption that short-term stoclung facilties with stocking finance prowiders of €88 million and normal mamufacturer
consignment stock facilities will remain available to the Group throughout the next 12 months The forecasts take into account
the aforementioned factors to an extent which the Directors consider to be reasonable, based on the information that is
available to them at the time of approval of this financal information
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Golng Concern (continued)

In the event that additional funds are required in excess of the above facilities as a result of the Group not substantally
achieving its forecasts, the Directors would have to supplement, renew or replace those faclties with facilties that are
appropriate to the Group's ongemng requirements.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future For those reasons, they continue to edopt the going concem basis in
prepanng this Annual Report

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Pensions

The hability recogrised n the balance sheset in raspect of the Group's retirament benefit cbligations represents the habilities of
the Group's defined benefit pension schemes aftar deduction of the fair value of the related assets The schemes' liabilties
are derived by estimating the ultimate cost of benefits payable by the schemes and reflecting the discounted value of the
proportion accrued by the year end in the balance sheet In order to amve at these estimates, a number of key financial and
non-financial assumptions are made by management, changes to which could have a matena) impact upen the net deficit
and also the net cost recognised in the Income Statement

The principal assumptions relate to the rate of inflation, mortality and the discount rate The assumed rate of inflation is
important because this affects the rate at which salaries grow and therefore the size of the pension that employees recerve
upon retirement, Over the longer term, rates of inflation ¢an vary significantly

The uverall benefits payable by the schemes will also depend upon the langth of time that members cf the schemes live for;
the longer they remam alive, the hugher the cost of the pension benefits to be met by the schemes. Assumptions are made regarding
the expected Efetme of the schemes’ members, basad upon recent national expenence. However, given the rates of advance n
medical science, it 1s uncertam whether these assumptions will prove tc be accurate n practice

The rate used to discount the resulting cash flows is equrvalent to tha market yield at tha balance shest date on hugh qualty bonds
with a similar duration to the schemes kabifites. This rate 15 potentially subject to significant variation, The net cost recognised in the
Income Statement is also affectad by the expected return on the schemes’ assets This 1s determined on the bases of the asset mux
within the schemes at the beginning of the year and the markst expectations for the retum on each asset type The impact of the
pension estimates on the Group's accounts can be seen in nots 28

Goodwill and Intangible Assets .

The Group reviews the goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of subsidianes or busnesses and any intangble assets with an ndefinte
life for mpaiment at least annually or when events or changes m economic creumstances indicate that empairment may have
taken place The mparment review I3 performed by projecting the future cash flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon
budgets and plang and making appropnate assumptions about rates of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into
account prevaling market interest rates and the risks mherent in the busimess. If the present value of the projected cash flows s less
than the camying value of the underhng net assets and related goodwill, an imparment charge would be required m the Income
Statement.

This calculation requires the exercise of significant judgement by management, if the estimates made prove to be ncomect or
changes in the performance of the subsidianes affect tha amount and timing of futura cash fiows, goodwill may become impamed n
future periods

In respect of acquistticns, at the pont of acquisition the Group ts required to assess whether mtangible assets nesd to ba separately
dentified and measured The measurement and assessment of the useful economic lives of mtangible assets requres the use of
judgement by management

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consoldated financial statements compnse the accounts of the Company end s subsidiary undertakings. An undertaluing
ts regarded as a subsidiary if the Group has control over its operating and financial policies. The profits and losses of subsidiary
undertakings are consolidated as from the effactive date of acquisttion or to the effectiva date of disposal.

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account for the acquisiton of subsidiaries The cost of an acquistion s
measured as the fair value of the assets acqurred, equity instruments issued and kabilites incurred or assumed at the date of
completion, pius costs directly attributable to the acquision. Identifiable asssts acquired, Eabilities and contmgent liabifihes assumed
m a business combmnation are measured inrtially at ther far values at the acquisthion date, mrespective of the extent of any mmnonty
interest. The excess of the cost of acquistion over the far value of the Group's share of the xdemifiable net assets acquired 18
recorded as goodwill tf the cost of acquisition s less than the far vahe of the net assets of the subsidiary acquered, the diference
13 recognised directly in the income Statement.

intercompany transactons, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are sliminated. Unrealisad

losses ere also efiminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impasment of the asset transferred Accounting policies of
acquired subsidlanas are changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the polcies adoptad by the Group
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6. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at mvoice pnce, excluding value added taxes, and prncpally compnses extemnal vehicle sales, parts, servicing
and bodyshop sales Vehicle and parts sales are recognised when substantially all nsks and rewards have been transferred to
the customer This s generally at the time of delivery to the customer Service and bodyshop sales are recognised i Ine with the
work performed. Revenue also compnses commissions recenvable for amanging vehicle financing and related insurance products.
Commissions are based on agreed rates and income is recognrsed at the tme of approval of the vehucle finance by the finance
provider Where the Group s acting as agent on behalf of a prncipal, the commission eamed s also recorded at an agreed rate when
the transaction has occumed.

6 SEGMENTAL REPORTING
A busmess segment is a component that engages in business actmties from which t may eam revenues and incur expenses,
whose operatng results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources
to be alocated to the segment and assess ts parformance, and for which discrete financial information is avalable The business
segrments are set out Innote 1

7 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Exceptional termns are tems that are unusual because of therr size, nature or incidence and which the Group's management considers
should be disclosed separately to enable a full understending of the Group's resuits

8. GOODWILL ARISING ON CONSOLIDATION
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net dentriable assets of
the acquired entity at the date of the acquisition Goodwill on acquisthons of subsldianes is shown separately on the balance sheet
Goodwlll arising on acquistions is tested annually for impaimment and Is camad at cost less accumutated imparment losses.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets acquired on a business combination are capralised separately from goodwill if the asset is separable and if far
value can be measured refiably on initial recognition. Intangible assets so acquired are camed at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any imparment losses. Amortisation 1$ provided on a straight line basis to allocate the cost of the asset over its estimated useful
Ife. The usefu! Ife of customer relationships is expected to be up to 20 years, and the useful lives of acquired brands vary between
5 years and mdefinite Ife The Group has no mternally generated intangible assets

10. INVESTMENTS
Investments held as fixed assats arp statad et cost less prowvision for imparment.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Assets are statsd at ther deemed cost less depreciation. With the exception of certan properties which were revalued on
31 Decamber 2003, all asssts are recorded at historical cost. The basis of the revatuation, being open market value was, i the
opinion of the Drectors, approximate to fair value and has been adopted as deemed cost on transtion to IFRS The Group has
adopted the cost model under IAS 16, 'Property plart and equipment ’

Freehold buldings and long leasehold properties are deprecrated over S0 years on a straight ine bass to ther estmated resdual
values. Short leasehold properties are amortused by equal instaiments over the penods of the respective leases.

Plant and machmery (including motor vehicles), fixtures, fitings, tools and equipment (inchuding computer equipment and termmals),
are depreclated on a straight line bas:s at rates varying between 10% and 33% per ennum over ther estrmated usefid lives.
Property, plant and equipmem ano transferrad to “Assets held for sale”™ when managemant expect their disposal to be completed
within one year from the balance sheet date. Non-current assets classifisd as held for sals ere stated at the lower of net book value
or expected proceeds

12 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Assets that have an ndefinte [ife are not subject to amortsation and are testsd annually for imparment. Assets subject to
amortisation are reviewed for mpaiment whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the cammying amount may not
be recoverable. An imparment koss 13 recogrsed for the amount by which the asset's cammying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the lugher of an assat’s farr value less disposal costs, and value in use.

13 LEASES
Assets purchased under hre purchase contracts are caprtalised in the balance sheet and are depraciated over tharr useful kves. The
interest elament of the rental cbiigation ts charged to the income Statement so as to giva a constant rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligation.
Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the Income Statement m equal annual amounts over the periods of the leases.

14, INVENTORIES
Invertories are valued at the lower of purchase price and net realisable value. Deposits paid for vehuicles on consignment represent
bulk deposits pad to manufacturers. The Group recognises consignment stock in s balance sheet when there has been a
substantial transfer of the nsks and rewards of ownership, The related kabiltes are nciuded in trade payables
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15, TAXATION
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax curmently payable s based on taxable
profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income Statemeant because it exchudes tems of ncome or
expense that ane taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s
ability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Defermed tax 15 provided in full, using the habilty method, on taxable temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and liabifibes and ther camrying amounts n the consolidated financial statements. However, d the deferred tax anses from rubal
recognition of an assst or abilty In a transacton other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects nerther
accourting nor taxable profit or loss, it 18 not accounted for Defemed tax s determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset = realised
or the defermad tax liabifity is seted Defermed tax assats sre recognisad to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available agamnst whech the temporary differences can be utilised. Defemed tax 15 not provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, as the Group controls tha timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probabile that the
ternporary difference will not reverss in the foreseeabls future

16. PENSION COSTS
The Group operates the “Lookers Pension Plan” and the “Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan” which are defined benefit pension
schemes providing bensfits based on final pensionable salary The defined benefit schemes define the amount of pension benefit
that an employea will receive on retirement, dependent on one or more factors including age, years of service and salary Both
schemes are closed to new rmembers.

The last tnenmal valuation of the “Lookers Pension Plan™ was camed out at 31 Decernber 2007 by Mercer Human Resource
Consulting Limited and has been updated to 31 December 2010 by a qualified independent actuary to take account of IAS 19
raquirements, The last tnennial valuation of the “Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan™ was carried out at 31 March 2007 by KPMG
LLP and has been updated to 31 December 2010 by a qualified independent actuary to take account of IAS 19 requirements.

Under IAS 19, the defined benefit deficts are mcluded on the Group's balance sheet. Liabilites are cakulated based on the current
yrelds on hugh quality corporate bonds and on market conditions. Surpluses ar only Included to the extent that they are recoverable
through reduced contributons n the future or through refunds from the schemes.

The curment sennce cost and any past-service costs are included n the Income Statement within operating costs. The expected retum
on the schemes’ assets, net of the mpact of the unwirdng of the discount on the schemes’ Labilibes, s ncluded within finance costs.

Actuanal gans and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes m actuanal assumptions are charged or credited, net of
deferrad tax, each year to reserves and shown in the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense.

Past-sarvice costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the employees
rermairung in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period) In this cass, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
line bass over the vesting period

The Group alsc prowides pension arrangements for employees and certain Dreclors under defined contribubion schemes.
Contributions for these schemes are changed to the Income Statement in the year n which they are payable

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse deposits with banks and financial institutions, bank
and cash balances. and iqued nvestments, net of bank overdrafts In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included n cument
borrowings

18. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
The Group ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settied share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The far vahue determined at the grant
date of the equrty-settled share-based payments s expensed on a straght-fine basts over the vesting penod, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjustad for the effect of non-market-hased vesting conditions.

Farr value 18 measured by use of the Black Scholes model. The expected fife used in the model has been aedusted, based on
management's best estirnate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considarations.

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to managa its exposure to interast rate and fore:gn exchange rate
risk, including forward foreign exchange contracts and an interest rate collar Further detafis of denvative financial instruments are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements

Derivatives are ntially recognmsed at far value on the date a denvative contract is entered nto and ame subsequently remeasured
to their far value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss s recogrused in the Income Statement mnmediately unless the
derivative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event, the timmg of the recognition in the Income Statement
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship The Group designates certan denvatives as hedges of highly probable forecast
transactions or hedges of foreign currency nsk of firm commutments (cash flow hedges)

Lookers plo Annual Report & Accounts 010




Principal Accounting Policies

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The farr value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current asset or a non-curent Lability if the remaining matunty of the hedge

relahonship 15 more than 12 months and as a curent asset or a current iiability if the remaining matunty of the hedge relatonship is
less than 12 months,

Denvatives not designated inte an effective hedge relationship are classified as a current assat or a current habilty

Cash Flow Hedges

The effactive portion of changes in the fair value of denvatves that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges s recognised
n other comprehensive income. The gan or loss relating to the ineffective portion s recognised mmediately in profit or loss and is
nciuded in the "other gans and losses’ Ene tem

Amournts praviously recogrised in other comprehensive income end accumutated in squlity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
penods when the hedged item Is recognised in proft or koss, in the samae [ine of the mcome statement as the recognised hedge item
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognitton of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the gains end losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from aquity and included in the inttial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability

20. EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD
The effective mterest method 8 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interast income over
the relevant pericd  The effective mterest rate s the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash recetpts through the expected
Iife of the financial asset, or, where appropnate, a shorter period

Debt nstruments that are held-to-matunty, are available for sale or are loans and recenables recognised 1 Income on an effactive
nterest rate basis.

Loans and Recelvables

Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active markst are
classified as 'loans and recevables' Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
mparment.

Interest 1s recogmised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would
be mmatenal

Impasrment of Financial Assets

Financial essets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for ndicators of impamment at each batance sheet
date. Financial assets are Impared where there s objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the mitial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the mvestment have been impacted. For loans and
recenvables the amount of the imparment is the difference between the assst's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective intarest rate.

The camying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the mparrment loss directly for all financia! assets with the exception
of trade recervables where the carmying emount is reduced through the usa of an allowance account. When a trade recawvable
uncollectable, it 18 wniten off aganst the allowance account. Subsequert recovenes of amowunts previously written off are credited
agamnst the alowance account. Changes i the carrymg amount of the allowanca account are recognised in profit or loss

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUED BY THE GROUP
Debt instruments
Debt instruments are classified as ether financial abilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arangement.

Financial Liabilities
Financial abilitles ara classiied as ether financial liabllities ‘at fair valus through profit or kiss’ or other financial labilites.

22 DIVIDENDS

Final Dmdends proposed by the Board and unpaid at the end of the year are not recognised n the financial statements until they
have been approved by the sharehclders at the Annual General Meeting. Intenm Dividends are recogrsed when they are pad

23. REPURCHASE COMMITMENTS
As part of ts normal trading actnities, the Group has contracted to repurchase, at predetermined valuas and dates, certain vehicles
prenously sold under a financial amangement. The Company’s residual interest in these vehicles 13 included in inventories and the
related liabifity is included as repurchase commitments within trade and other payables

Lookers pto Annual Report & Accounts 2010




Income Statements

Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
Note £m &m Em £m
Contmuing operations
Revenue 1 1,882.8 1,748.0 - -
Cost of sales {1,622.2) (1,487 9) - -
Gross profit 260.6 2611 - -
Distnbution costs (140.0} {139 5) - -
Admtnistrative expenses (75.5) 92 7) {12.3) (24 0)
Other operating mcome 0.5 o4 23 181
Profit/{loss) from operations 45.6 293 100 {79
Profit from operations before amortisation
and exceptional items 489 45.1 106 43
Amortisation of intangibte assets 9 (1.3} 17 {0 6) 08
Exceptional items from operations 3 - (14.1) - (11 4)
Profit/{loss} from operations 45.6 293 10.0 79
Interest payable 2 (13.4) n7z1 (9.9) (137)
Interast receivable 2 0.1 03 5.0 586
Net interest {13.3) (16 8} (4.9) 81)
Exceptional interest payable on closed businesses 3 - {01) - -
Debt issue costs {1.2) {0 9) {(12) {0 9)
Profit/{loss) on ordinary actwities before taxation aa 115 3.9 (169
Profit/(loss) before tax, amortisation,
exceptional tems and debt i1ssue costs 336 283 8.7 (38)
Amortisation of ntangible assets (1.3) 17 {0.6) 08
Total exceptional items 3 - (14 2) - (11 4
Debt tssue costs 1.2 09 {12) 09
Profit/(loss) on ordinary actwties before taxation 3 311 15 39 {16 9)
Tax {charge)/credit 4 8.2} 35 0.6 55
Profit/{loss) for the year 229 80 45 {11 4)
Gantinuing operationg
Eamings per share
Basic earnings per share 6 507p 2.79p
Diluted earmungs per share [ 5.85p 2.72p
Statements of Comprehensive Income
Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note £m £m £m £m
Profit/loss) for the financial year 22.9 8.0 4.5 {11 4)
Actuanal gans / (lossas} recognised in post-
ratirement benefit schemes 28 3.8 . 94 20 37N
Movement in deferred taxation on pension hability 22 (13-, . _ 23 ©.n 08
Farr value on denvalive instruments @y -2 2.3 09)
Movement in deferred taxation on derivative instruments 0.8 - 0.8 -
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year (2] 8 3) {0.4) @0
Total comprehensive ncome/{expense) for the year p~¥:] {0 3) 4.1 (15 4)
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Balance Sheets

Group Compeny
2016 2009 2010 2009
Note £m £m £m £m
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 8 448 44 8 - -
Intangible assets 9 15.7 171 28 34
Property, plant and equipment 10 184.6 1976 0.2 04
Investment i subsidianes 11 - - 53.T 537
Doferred tax asset 22 - - 5.7 74
255.1 2595 62.4 649
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventonies 12 292.3 247 4 - -
Trade and other recelvables 13 1042 1083 183.5 1934
Cash and cash equivalenis 15 243 123 386 207
Assets held for sale 16 78 92 - -
428.6 3752 230.1 2141
TOTAL ASSETS 6837 6347 292.5 2790
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilities
- Bark loans and overdrafts 19 141 104 1441 100
- Hira purchase cbhgations - 02 - -
Trade and other payables 17 353.8 3151 7.7 431
Current tax Labilities 18 a7 88 34 60
Short-term provisions 21 09 09 - -
Dernvative financial instruments 8.5 63 8.5 63
387.0 3417 877 654
NET CURRENT ASSETS 41.8 335 1324 1487
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial labilitbes
- Bank lnans 19 668 B09 66.8 :TeR:]
Trade and other payables 17 T2 46 - -
Retirement benefit obkgatons 28 27 355 1.7 182
Deferred tax habilities 22 133 112 - -
Long-terrn provisions 21 0.7 07 - -
115.1 1329 78.5 991
TOTAL LIABILITIES 502.1 474 6 176.2 164 5
NET ASSETS 181.6 160 1 11683 114 5
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 23 19.2 192 192 192
Share premium 24 736 736 736 736
Capttal redemption reserve 25 14.6 146 146 146
Other reserve 26 (1.4} 19 {1.1) {11)
Retalned eamings 27 75.6 54.1 10.0 B2
TOTAL EQUITY 1818 1801 118.3 1145

The financial statements of Looksrs plc registered no 111878 on pages 40 to 74
were approved by the Directors on 9 March 2011

Signed on behalf of the Directors.

L

P. Jones
Director

R.A
Director
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Share Share ndm Other Reatamed

capital presrium reserve reserve samings Total
Qroup £m Em Em £m £ £m
As at ¥ January 2009 91 62 146 (11} 54 1 829
New shares 1ssusd 101 67 4 - - - 775
Profit for the year - - - - 80 80
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes (note 28) - - - . ©4 94
Deferred taxation on pension hability - - - - 23 23
Fair value on denvative instruments - - - 03) 09) 12
As at 31 December 2009 192 736 146 (14) 541 1601
Profit for the year - - - - 229 229
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes {note 28) - - - - 38 38
Deferred taxation on pension liability - - - - (12 12
Far value on denvative instruments - - - - 23) 23
Deferred taxation on dervatives - - - - 06 06
Dividends to shareholders - - - - {23) {2 3)
As at 31 December 2010 192 736 146 {14) 756 18186

Capitat
Share Share redemption Other Retained

capital premium reserve reserve eamings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2009 91 62 1486 (11} 236 524
New shares ssued 101 67 4 - - - 775
Loss for the year - - - - (11 4) (11 4)
Actuanal losses on dsfined benefit
pension schemes (note 28) - - - - @n 37
Deferred taxation on pension fiability - - - - 06 06
Falr value on derivative Instruments - - - - D9 {09
As at 31 December 2009 192 736 14 6 {11) 82 1145
Profit for the year - - - - 45 45
Actuanal gains on defined benefit
pension schemes (note 28) - - - - 20 20
Deferred taxation on penston Lability - - - - on on
Farr value on denvative instruments - - - - 23 23)
Deferred taxation on denvatives - - - - 06 06
Dividends to shareholders - - - - 23) (2 3)
As at 31 December 2010 192 736 146 {11) 100 1163
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Cash Flow Statements

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
Note £m £m £m £
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year 2.8 80 4.5 (11 4)
Adjustments for
Tax 8.2 35 {0.6) (55)
Depreciation 3 78 83 03 03
Dvidend receved - - {9.6) ‘1)
Loss on disposa! of plant and equipment 3 0.2 - - -
Loss on closed busmesses 3 - (18) - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 13 17 0.6 o8
Interest incoma 0.1 03) (5.0 {595)
Interest payable 13.4 171 2.9 137
Debt 1ssue costs 12 09 12 09
Changes in working capital
{increase)/Decease in inventones {44.9) 562 - -
Decrease/(Increase)/in trade and other receivables 21 (18 3} ©.1) 342
Increase/{Dacreasa) in payablas 41.3 (52 0} 28.1 (14 9)
Difference between pension charge and
cash contributions {4.1) 30) {3 4) B
Movement in provisions - 0 2) - -
Cash generated from operaticns 49.3 201 25.9 35
Interest paid {13.3) (150) ©.Nn (109)
Interest received o1 o2 5.0 48
Tax (paid)/refunded (5.9) 10 (2.5} 10
Net cash inflow/(outflow} from operating activities 30.2 63 18.7 {16)
Cash flows from investing actrvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {12.3) (7 2) (0.1) 03
Purchase of intangible assets - 0 2) - {02)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 70 25 - -
Proceeds from sale of business - 03 - -
Dwvidends received - - 9.6 61
Net cash (used)/generated by investing activities (53) (4 6) 9.5 56
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssuse of ordinary shares - 776 - 77.6
Repayment of loans {10.0} (65 9) {10.0) (65 9)
Debt 1ssue costs - {3 5) - 35)
Principal payments under hire purchase agreements (0.2) 0 1) - -
Dividends paid to Group shareholders 2.3) - (2.3) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (12.5) 81 {(12.3) g2
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 124 98 15.8 122
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 11.9 21 20.7 85
Cash and cash equivalents st 31 Decomber 243 119 366 207
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1. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

At 31 Dacember 2010 {2009 same) the Group I1s organised into two main business segments, mator distribution and
parts distnbution

Pnmary reporting format - business segments

Year ended Motor Perts
31 Decembaer 2010 Division Distribution Unallocated Qroup
Note £m £m £m £m

Centinuing oparations

New Cars 8440 - - 8440
Used Cars 595 4 - - 595 4
Aftersales 268 4 176 0 - 444 4
Revenue 1,707 8 176 0 - 1,883 8

Segmental result before amortisation of

intangible assats and exceptional items 359 124 (14) 469

Armortisation of intangible assets 9 - - 3 (13
Interest expense (7 6) [} 57 {13 4)
Interest income - - o1 01

Daebt 1ssue costs - - 12 12)
Profit before taxation 283 123 (9 5) 311

Taxation - - 82 82
Profit tor the financial year from

continuing operations attnbutable

to shareholders 229
Segmental assels 566 4 1173 - 6837
Total assets 566 4 1173 - 683 7
Segmantal habilitias 356 1 651 - 421 2
Unallocated habilties

- Corporate borrowings - - 809 809
Total habilies 356 1 65 1 809 502 1

Other segmental items

Capital expenditure 10 102 21 - 123
Depreciation 10 59 19 - 78
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 - - 13 13
Impairment of trade receivables 13 07 07 - 14
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1. SEQMENTAL REPORTING (continued)

Year ended Motor Parts
31 D 2009 (Rep Division Distribution Unallocated Qroup
Note €m £m £m £m

Continuing operations

New Cars 7836 - - 7836
Used Cars 5427 - - 5427
Aftarsales 268 4 154 3 - 4227
Revenue 1,594 7 154 3 - 1,749 0

Segmaental result before amortisation of

intangible assets and exceptional items 326 114 11 451

Amortisation of intangible assets 9 - - (17 7
Exceptional items 3 - - (14 2) (14 2)
Interest expense {7 3) 03 {9 5) (17 1)
Interest income - - 03 03
Debt 1ssue costs - - 09 (0 9}
Prefit before taxation 253 111 {24 9) 15
Taxation - - (3 5) (3 5)
Profit for the financial year from

continuing operations attributable

to shareholders 80
Segmental assets 5321 102 6 - 634 7
Total assets 5321 102 6 - 634 7
Segmental habilties 3345 528 - 3873
Unallocatec kabilittes

= Corporate borrowings - - 873 87 3
Total liabilities 3345 528 873 474 6
QOther segmental items

Capital expenditure 10 42 30 - 72

Dapreciation 10 66 17 - 83

Amortisation of intangible assets 9 - - 17 17

Impairment of trade recevables 13 07 06 - 13

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, inventones, debtors and operating cash Segment liabilities comprise
operating habilities and exclude certain corporate borrowings Capital expenditure comprises addtions to property, plant and
equipment, including addiions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations

The prior year figures have been represented tc more accurately reflect the underying records in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 8

Company
The Company's business 1s to mvest i its subsidianes and, therefore, it operates in a single segment

Lockers plo Annusl Report & Accounts 2010




Notes to the Financial Statements

2. FINANCE COSTS - NET

Comparny
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Interest expense
On amounts wholly repayable within 5 years
Intarest payable on bank bormowings (84) {110 {9.4) (10 6)
Interest on consignment vehicle habilities {3.8) (3 6) - -
Interast due to Group companies - - - 07
Other interest - 02 - 1)
Net interest on pension schemes {note 28} {1.1) 23 0.5) {13)
Interest and similar charges payable {13-4) (17 1) (8.9) {13 7)
Interast income
Bank interest 0.1 03 - D2
Interest recewved from Group companies - - 5.0 54
Total interest racervable 0.1 03 5.0 56
Finance costs - net {13.3) {16 8) {4.9} 1)
3. PROFAIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION
Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
The following items have been Included in
amving at operating profit from operations
Staff costs (note 7) 149.2 1485 68 63
Depreciation of praperty, plant and squipment
- Owned assets 77 79 0.3 03
- Under finance leases 0.1 04 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.3 17 0.6 o8
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 0.2 - - -
Loss on closed businesses - 18 - -
QOther operating lease rentals payable
- Property a7 43 - -
- Plant & equipment 1.3 12 - -
Loss on derivative instruments 0.1 - 01 -
Net finance and debt 1ssue costs 14.5 178 61 98
Exceptional items
Refinance costs - {6 6) - 686
Loss on terminated businesses - 62) - {3 5)
Other - {0 5) - {035
Reorganisation costs - {0 8) - 0 8)
- 14 1) - {11 4)
Interest on closed businesses - 01) - -
Total exceptional items - (14 2} - (11 4)

The termmnated businesses represent the closure of certain franchised branches These actvities did not constitute a separate
major tine of business and so have not been classified as discontinued
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3. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Services provided by the Group’s auditor
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

2010 2009
Qroup £m £m
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts - -
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and their associates for other services to the Group
The audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 0.2 03
Total audit fees 02 03
Tax sarvices 0.1 02
Other services - 14
Total non-audst fees 0.1 16

Fees for other non-audrt services in the pnor year relate pnmanly to the refinancing exercise and the equity raising

4. TAXATION
Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m
Current tax expense/{income)
Current year 87 30 2.2 BN
Adjustment in respect of prior years {1.8) 03 - 11
68 33 22 46
Deferred tax expense/(income)
Deferred tax 0.1 02 0.8 (0 6}
Adjustment in respect of pnor years 13 - 0.8 {0 3)
14 02 1.6 GE))
Total income tax expense/income) in Income Statement 82 35 (0.6) (55)
Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
£m £m £m fm
Tax on tems charged to other comprehansive income
Deferred tax on denvative instruments 0.6 - 0.8 -
Deferred tax on pension lability 1.2 23 {0.7 086
The tax charge was affected by the following factors
Standard rate of corporation tax 28.0% 28 0% 28.0% 28 0%
Inter group dividend - - (67.0%) 101%
lterns not allowable for taxation 2.0% 61% 0.1% 09)%
Change in rate {1.5%) - 5.3% -
Reclassifying assets held for sale - (6 4)% - -
Adustments to prior years’ taxation {2.0%) 30% 19.2% 4 8)%
26.5% 307% {14.4%) 324%

The future tax charge will be affected by the levels of expenditure not deductible for taxation and any profits on sale of properties
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5. DIVIDENDS

2010 2009
Group and Compeny £m £m
Intenm dividend 0 6p (2009 ni) 2.3 -

The Directors propose a final dividend of 1 2p per share in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2010 (2009 £nil)
The proposed final dividend 15 subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not bean included
as a hability n these financial statements

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of eamnings per ordinary share Is based on the profit on ordinary actwvities after taxation amounting to £22 9m
(2009 £8 0m) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares in i1ssue during the year of 383,549,291 (2009 286,417,558)

The dillted earmings per share 1s based on the weighted average number of shares, after taking account of the ditutive impact of
shares under option of 7,619,782 (2009 7,337,396)

Adjusted eamings per share s stated before amortisation of intangible assets, impawrment of goodwill, debt 1ssue costs and
exceptional tems and s calculated on profits of £25 4m (2009 £21 0m) for the year

2010 2009
2010 Eamings 2009 Eamings
Earnings per share Eamings per share
Continuing operatons £m P &m P
Basic EPS
Eamings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 29 597 80 279
Effect of dilutive secunties - {0.12) - (0 07)
Diluted EPS 229 5.85 80 272
Adjusted EPS
Eamings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 229 5.97 B0 279
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.3 0.34 17 059
Debt 1ssue costs 12 0.32 09 031
Exceptional Hems (nat) - - 142 496
Tax on exceptional fems (net) - - (3 8) {133)
Adjusted EPS 254 663 210 732
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7. INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Employes costs duning the year
(inclusive of exacutive Directors)
Wages and salanes 1333 1325 5.4 49
Social sacurity costs 125 123 0.5 05
Other pension costs 34 37 0.9 09
149.2 1485 6.8 63
2010 2009 2010 2009
No No No. No
Average number employed dunng the year
{(including Directors)
Productive 1,258 1,291 - -
Selling and distribution 2,762 2,752 - -
Administration 1,444 1,444 81 103
5,464 5,487 81 103
2010 2008 20t0 2009
£m £m £m £m
Key management compensation
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 26 27 23 24
Post-employment benefits - 03 - 03
2.6 30 2.3 27

The key management compensation given above includes Directors and key operational staff.
During the year the aggregate gains made on the exercise of share options by Diractors was £ril (2009 £rul) Further details of
Drrectors’ remuneration 15 included n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 36

8. GOODWILL

010 2009
Group £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January and at 31 December 48.1 48 1
Aggregate imparment
As at 1 January and at 31 December 33 33
Net book amount at 31 December 44 8 448

Duning the year, the acquired goodwill was tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Following the impairment test,
no goodwill impairment charge was deemed necessary (2009 £nif)
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8. GOODWILL (contnued)

For the purposes of impawment testing of goodwill and intangible assets, the Directors recognise the Group's Cash Generating
Urits (*CGU") to be connected groupings of dealerships and each subsidiary compnsing the Parts Division  The recoverable
amount of each CGU's goodwill and intangible assets is based on value in use using Board approved budgeted projections over
the next five years for eaach CGU to calculate each CGU's terminal value, where individual budgets are produced for all businesses
within the Group The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period and the impairment calculation 1s sensrive to these key
assumptions Goodwill ts represented by £33 5m applicable to the Motor Dwision and £5 3m applicable to the Parts Division
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and
the nsks specific to the CGUs The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changes in selling pnces and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes In the markat An annual growth rate of 2 0% (2009 2 0%)
{UK GDP) 1s assumed and a nsk adjusted discount rate applied The discount rates are estimated based on the Group's cost of
capital which s calculated after consideration of market information and nisk adjusted for individual crcumstances with alt units
carrying a goodwill value operating in the UK and the motor retall or related sector a single pre-tax discount rate of 9 3% (2009
8 7%) has been apphed Where cashflows in excess of 5 years are mcluded m the calculation of the recoverable amount of sach
CGU's goodwill, this is based on operating units which occupy freehcld premises or leasehold premises with unexpired terms in
excess of five years

The two key assumptions mada by the Directors are the discount rate used and profitability rates beyond the business plan
Neither a 2% increass in the discount rate or a2 10% reduction in operating profit would result in any impairment being required

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer

Licences refationships Brands Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2010 50 115 62 227
Disposals (0 1) - - Q1)
As at 31 December 2010 49 115 62 226
Aggregate amortisation and impairment
As at 1 January 2010 16 30 10 56
Charge for the year 05 06 D2 13
As at 31 December 2010 21 36 12 69
Net beok amount at 31 December 2010 28 79 50 157
Acguired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 48 118 62 225
Addtions 02 - - 02
As at 31 December 2009 50 115 62 227
Aggregata amortisation and impaiment 09 24 08 41
As at 1 January 2009 {02) - - 02
Charge for the year 09 06 02 17
As at 31 December 2009 16 30 10 56
Net bock amount at 31 December 2009 34 85 52 171
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8, INTANGIBLE ASSETS {continued)

Within Brands, intangible assets of £4 7m (2009 £4 7m) are deemad by the Drectors to have an indsfinite useful economic Ife
These Brands arose on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings The trading actvities under these brand names generate
a substantral part of the Group's revenue and operating profit The Group 3 continually investing in these brands through
promotional actvities and advertising Dus to this continued investment these brands are judged to have an indefinite useful
sconomic Iife and no amortisation 1s charged

All amortisation charges in the year have been recognised within administrative expenses The impawrment testing for intangible
assets 1s paerformed as descnbed in note 8

Licences
Company £m
Acquired intangible assets
Cost 46
As at 1 January 2010 and at 31 December 2010 46
Aggregate amortisauon and impasmnent
As at 1 January 2010 12
Charge for the year 06
As at 31 December 2010 18
Net book amount at 31 Decamber 2010 28
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 44
Additions 02
As at 31 December 2009 46
Aggregate amortisation and imparment
As at 1 January 2009 06
Charge for the year 08
Other adjustments 02
As at 31 December 2009 12
Net book amount at 31 December 2009 34
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fixtures,
Long Short fittings,
Freehold leasehold leasshold Plant & tools &
property property property hinery quip Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2010 1310 493 111 141 237 2292
Additions in year 54 02 17 22 28 123
Disposals @33 (15 27 (14 (16 (105
As at 31 December 2010 1331 480 101 149 249 2310
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2010 34 27 26 86 143 A6
56 Charge for the year 08 08 07 23 3z 78
Disposals 02) (01} (0 6) {11) (10) (30)
As at 31 December 2010 40 34 27 98 165 3564
Net book value at
31 December 2010 1291 44 6 74 51 84 194 6
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {(continued}

Fhrturas,
Fixtures,
Short fittings,
Freahold L hold hold Plant & tocls &
property property property machinery aquipment Total
Qroup £m £m £rm £m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 1364 509 17 139 218 2347
Additions in year 151 13 03 17 34 72
Disposals - {(14) 09 {15) (15 53)
Reclassified to assets held for sale (note 16) 59 15 - - - {7 4)
As at 31 December 2009 1310 493 111 141 237 2292
Accumulated deprectation
As at 1 January 2009 37 28 29 75 120 289
Charge for the year 09 07 06 24 a7 83
Disposals - [(13y] 09 (13) na 43)
Reclassified to assets held for sale (note 16) (1 2) {@1) - - - (13)
As at 31 December 2009 34 27 26 86 143 316
Net book value at
31 December 2009 1276 466 85 55 94 197 6
Assets held under finance leases, capitalised and included in plant & machinery and fixtures and fittings
201¢ 2009
£m £m
Cost 0.6 o8
Aggregate depreciation {0.5) {0 4)
0.1 02

In accordance with IFRS 1 'First time adoption of Intemationa! Reporting Standards’, and (AS 16 ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ the Group has adopted the cest model, electing to use revaluations made under previous UK GAAP as deemed

cost for its freehold and leasehold properties

The Group's freehold and leasehold properties were revalued on 31 December 2003, by independent qualified valuers on the
basis of open market value in England and Scotland by Messrs Donaldsons, Chartered Surveyors, and in Northern Ireland by
Messrs Hamilton Osbome King, Chartered Surveyors The Directors are satisfied that open market value approximates to far

value
Fixtures, fittings,
tools &
squipment
Company £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2010 15
Additions in year 01
As at 31 December 2010 16
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2010 11
Charge for the year 03
As at 31 December 2010 14
Net book valua at 31 Decernber 2010 02
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contunuan)

Fixturas, fittings,
tools &
equipment
Company £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 13
Addtions in year 02
As gt 31 December 2009 15
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2009 08
Charge for the year 03
As at 31 December 2009 11
Net book value at 31 Decamber 2009 04
11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2010 2009
Company £m £m
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 2010 53.7 537

Details of the pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are as follows

DSM Autos Limited

Charles Hurst Limited

Lookers Motor Group Limited

Lookers Birmingham Limited

FPS Distribution Limited

Dutton Forshaw Motor Company Limited
Lookers Leasing Limited

Boling Investments Limited
Charles Hurst Motors Limted
Ferrans Piston Service Limited
MB South Limited

Apec Limited

BTN Turbecharger Service Limited
Platts Harris Limited

All subsidiaries are incorporated and registered in England and operate in England and Wales with the excepticn of Charles
Hurst Limstad and Charles Hurst Motors Limited which are mcorporated, registared and operate in Northern Ireland and
Scotland All subsidiary companies are wholly owned with the excaption of Lookers Birmingham Uimited and Charles Hurst

Motors Limited in which 89% sharehcldings are held

A full hst of subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the Company's next Annual Return

12, INVENTORIES
2010 2009
Group £m £m
Goods for resale 186.9 1771
Bulk deposits paid for vehicles on consignment 0.1 a1
Consignment vehicles 95.3 702
2923 247 4
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade debtors 829 830 0.3 01
Less provision for mpairment of recevables {1.4) (13) - -
81.5 817 0.3 c1
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 1911 1850
Other debtors 88 136 01 63
Prepayments 13.9 110 2.0 20
104.2 106 3 193.5 193 4

The average credit penod on sales of goods s 17 days (2009 18 days) Trade recevables are provided for based on estmated
wrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods, determmed by reference to past default expenence

Included in the Group's trade recevable balance are debtors with & carmying amount of £7 4m (2009 £7 4m) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a signficant change in credit quality and the
Group believes that the amounts are stll considered recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances The
average age of these recewvables 1s 43 days (2009 43 days)

Amounts owed by Group undertakings in the Company balance shest are incurred in the normal course of trading and the Directors
consider there to be no signdicant credit nsk.

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £m £m £m £m
Balance at beginning of the year 13 13 - -
Amounts written off dunng the year {0.3) {0 3} - -
Increase in allowance reacogmised in Income Statement 0.4 03 - -
Balance at the end of the year 14 13 - -

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit qualty of the trade
recervable from the date credit was ihally granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit nisk s imited due to the
custorner base being large and unrelated Accordingly, the Diractors believe that thera is no further credit prowvision required In
excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are specific trade recevables with a balance of £267,308 {2009 £270,305) for the
Group and £ni (2009 £nil) for the Company which have been placed under hquidation The impawrment represents the difference
between the carrying amount of the specific trade receivable and prasent value of the expected liquidation dvidend

2010 2009
Vaiue of Receivablea Value of Racevables
Group £m % £m %
Not impaired:
- Naither past dua nor impawed 82.6 s 887 8931
- Past due up to 3 months but not mpaired 75 83 63 66
- Past due 3 to 6 months 0.1 0.1 02 02
- Past due 6 te 12 months 0.1 0.1 01 01
803 100.0 953 1000
2010 2009
Value of Recsivables Vahus of Receivables
Company £m % £m %
Not impaired*
= Neither past due nor impaired 1915 100.0 1914 1000
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14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m
Investments cammed at cost
Non~-current
Investments in subsidiaries - - 53.7 537
Loans camed at amortised cost
Current
Loans to subsidianes - - 1911 1850
Disclosed in the financial stataments as
Current other financial assets - - 1911 1850
Non-current other financlal assets - - 53.7 537
15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 243 123 366 207
Bank overdraft - ©4) - -
Raconcilaton to cashflow statements 243 119 36.6 207

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an enginal maturity of three
months or less The camrying amount of these assets approximates to their farr value

16. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m Em £m
As at 1 January 2010 9.2 - - -
Additiens - a2z - -
Disposals {1.4) - - -
At 31 December 2010 7.8 92 - -

Assets held for sale compnse several freehold and long leasehold properties which are currently being marketed for resale
These properties are stated at the lower of net resaleable value or net book value and in the Directors’ opinion are likely to be
realised during 2011
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 1274 126 5 29 38
Repurchase commitments 728 657 - -
Consignment vehicle creditors 95.3 702 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 495 245
Other tax and social secunty payable 10 92 0.1 -
Other creditors 10.8 107 g8 88
Accruals and deferred ncome 36.5 328 10.4 60
353.8 3151 .7 431
Repurchase commitments due after more than 1 year 72 46 - -
The Directors consider the camying value of trade payables approximates to therr value
18. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Group
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Current tax habilities a7 88 34 60
19. BORROWINGS
Group Compeny
2010 2009 208 2009
£m £m Em £m
Gurrent
Securad bank loans 14.1 104 14.1 100
Non-current
Securad bank loans 668 809 66 8 809
Total borrowings 80.9 913 B0.9 809
Qroup Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
£m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdratt repayabls
Less than one year 14.1 104 14.1 100
More than one year and not more than two years 66.8 100 56.8 100
More than two years and not more than five years - 709 - 709
80.9 913 80.9 09

The pnncipal features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows

At 31 December 2010 the Group had 2 pnncipal bank loans

{} A loan of £80 9m which wall continue untd 30 Apn! 2012 The lkoan cames an interest rate of between 3 0% and

4 0% above LIBOR.

(1) A revolving loan facility of £563 3m The facility can be drawn in whola or part at any tme and will continue until 30 Apn!

2012 The drawn down part of the loan cames an interest rate of batween 3 0% and 4 0% above LIBOR
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19. BORROWINGS {continued)

The werghted average interest rate paid dunng the year on the bank loans was 4 01% (2009 2 7%)
At 31 Dacember 2010, the Group had avaitable £53 3m {2009 €52 9m) of undrawn commirtted borrowing faciities in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met

The Group's current facilities were negotiated on 29 May 2009 and updated on 26 June 2009 as a result of the equity raising
which repard £65m of term loans with £12 6m being applied aganst the revolving loan facility

Ot this amount £80 9m {2008 £31 3m) is repayable in mstalments up until 2012 (2009 2012)

The Company Is jointly and severally liable under cross guarantees within the Group for bank loans and overdrafts which amounted
to £nil (2009 £0 4m}

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the cntena for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recogrised, In respect of each class of financial asset, financial ability and
equity instrument are disclosed in the accounting policy note

Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
Categories of fi | instruments £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash 243 123 366 207
Loans and recewables 81.5 817 1913 1852
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 383 4 3584 133.3 1182

Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

The far values of the Groups financial instruments are categorised as Level 2, based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable Level 2 fair value measurements are those denved from inputs other than unadjusted quoted pricas In active markets
{Level 1 categonsation) that are observable for the asset or kability, esther directly (i @ as pnces) or indirectly (i@ denved from
pnces)

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group’s Corporate Treasury function manages the financial nsks relating to the operations of the Group through internal nsk
reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of nsks These nsks include market nsk {including currency nsk, farr
value interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk, iquidity nsk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group sesks to minimise the effects of these risks, by using derivative financial mstruments to hedge these nsk exposures
The use of financia) denvatives 1s govemed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
prnciples on foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk, credit nsk, the use of financial denvatives and non-dervative financal
instruments, and the Investment of excass iquidty Complance with policies and exposure imits I1s reviewed by the internal
auditors on a continuous basis The Group does not enter nto or trade financial nstruments, including denvative financiat
nstruments, for speculative purposes

Market Risk

The Group's activities expose it pnmarily to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates
The Group entars into a variety of demvative financial instruments to manage lts exposure to interest rate and foreign currency
nsk, mncluding

» forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk ansing on the purchase of parts,
» forward interast rates, and
* interest rate nsk management

During tha course of the year there has been no change to the markst sk or manner m which the Group manages its exposure

Lookers ple Annual Raport & Accounts 2010




Notes 1o the Financial Statements

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {contnued)

Foreign Currency Risk Management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denomunated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuationa
anse Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy paramaters utlising forward foreign exchange contracts

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary habilities at the reporting date
15 as follows

Liabilities Assats
2010 2009 10 2009
£m £m £m fm
UsD - - - o8
Euro - - 0.3 02

The Company had no foreign currency denominated monetary assets or monetary liabilities at the reporting date {2008 same)

The majority of the Group's business is carried out in sterling However for the Imited number of transactions in foreign currency
the Group is mainly exposed to US Dollars and Euros The following table detans the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% change in
pounds sterling against the respective foreign currencies 10% 19 the rate used when reporting foreign currency nsk ntemally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates The
sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date has been determned based on the
change taking place at the baginming of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting peniod A positive number
indicates an increase in profit or loss and other equity where pounds sterling strengthens against the respective currency

UsSD knpact Euro impact
Group Group
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
Profit or loss - - 0.3 -

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Group and Company are exposed to interest rate nsk as entihes in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates The nsk 1s managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the
use of interest rate swap contracts Hedging actnvities are evaluated regularty to align with interest rate views and defined nsk
appetite, ensuring strategies to mrtigate risks are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expense
through different interest rate cycles

The Group and Company’s exposures to Interest rates on financial assets and financial habilties are detailed in the Liguidity sk
management section of this note

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting date and stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting peniod A 50 basis point
change 1s used when reporting interest nsk intemally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in interast rates

+ 50 Basis Points = 50 Basis Points

Group Company Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit or loss 0.5 {0 6) - - 0.5 06 - -

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group and Company agree to exchangs the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional pnncipal amounts Such contracts enable the Group and Company to mitigate
the nsk of changing interest rates on the fair value of 1ssued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued
vanable rate debt held The fair value of interest rate swaps at the year end is determined by discounting the future cash flows
using the year end curves and the credit nsk inherent in the contract, and 1s disclosed on the next page. The average interest
rate is based on the outstanding balances at the start of the financial year
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk Management

Crednt nsk refers to the risk that a counterparty wall default on its contractual obhgations resulting in financial loss to the Group  The
Group has adopted a pohicy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterat where appropnate,
as a means of miigating the nsk of financizal loss from defaults The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties
are controlled by counterparty imits that are reviewed and approved by the Risk Management Committee annually

Trade recevables are spread across a large number of counterparties across a large geographical area.

The Group does not have any significant credrt nsk exposure to any smgle courterparty or any group of counterparties having
similar charactenstics The credit nsk on lquid funds and denvative financial instruments 18 imited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

The cammying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained

Liguidity Risk Management

Ultimate responsibility for hquidity nisk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has bult an appropnate hquidity
nsk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and hquidity management
requirements The Group manages iquidity nsk by maintaning adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
faciities by continuously montonng forecast and actual cash flows and matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and
labilities Included in note 30 is a hsting of additional undrawn facilities that the Group/Company has at its disposal to further
reduce hguidity nsk.

The following table detals the Group's and the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for ts non-denvative financial
hatylites The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial habilities
including interest that will accrue to those habilities except where the Group/Company ts entitled and intends to repay the hability
before its maturity

Lesa than 1-3 3 Months to 15
1 Month Manths 1 Yaar Yaars Totat
Qroup £m £m €m £m £m
2010
Vanable interest
rate instruments - 1490 141 668 2299
Fixed interest rate
instruments - 1465 - - 146 5
- 2855 141 668 376 4
2009
Variable interest
rate instruments 04 *1369 100 BO9 2282
Fixed interest rate
instrumaents - *165 6 - - 1856
04 3025 100 809 393.8

Included within vanable interest rate instruments in the 1 to 3 month column is an amount of £72 Bm (2009 £65 6m) relating to
repurchase commitments whera the liability 13 only contractually due at the point where the related vehicle 1s sold to the end
customer In this way the Group matches the cash outflow tn respect of the liability with the cash inflow from the sale

Also included within vanable interest rate instruments in the 1 to 3 months column is an amount of £76 2m {2008 £71 3m) relating
to vehicle stocking loans

“‘Represented to more accurately reflect the underlying records

Laokars ple Annua! Repost & Accounts 2010




Notes to the Financial Statements

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Included within fixed interest rate instruments in the 1 to 3 month column is an amount of £95 3m (2009 £70 2m) relating
to consignment stock where the hability 15 contractually due for payment when the refated vehicle 1s adopted by the Group
Adoption usually occurs for the purpose of selling the vehicle to the end customer at which point the cash outflow in respect of
tha kability matches the cash inflow from the sale

Lesa than 1-3 3 Months 15
t Month Montha to t Year Yaars Totdd

Company £m £m £m £m £m
2010
Variable interest
rate instruments - - 141 668 809
Fixed Interest rata
instruments - 29 - - 29

- 29 141 668 838
2009
Vanable interest
rate instruments - - 100 809 a09
Fixed interast rate
instruments - 282 - - 282

- 282 100 809 1191

The objectives, policies and strategies for holding or 1ssuing financial instruments adopted by the Board are given n the
Directors’ Report Instruments held at the year end are set out in note 30

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages Its caprtal to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continus as a going concemn while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity batance The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from 2009

The caprtal structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 19, cash and cash equivalents
and equity holders of the parent, compnsing issued capital, reserves and retained eamings as disclosed in notes 23 to 27

The Group s not subject to any extemally imposed capial requirements

The Group's nsk management committee roviews the capital structure on a semrannual basis As part of this review,
the commuittee considers the cost of caprtal and the nsks associated with each class capital

Qearing Ratio
The geanng ratio at the year end 1s as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Debt 80.9 913
Cash and cash equivalents {24.3) (12 3)
Net Dabt 58.8 790
Totat Equity 181.6 1601
Net debt to equity ratio 2% 49 3%

Debt is defined as long-term and short-term bomowings (exchuding derivatives and finangial guarames contracts)
as detaled n note 19

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group that are managed as capital
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21, PROVISIONS

Dilapidations Closure coals Total
Group £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2010 09 07 16
Charged to Income Statement 02 - 02
Utilised 1n year 01) {01) {02)
As at 31 December 2010 10 06 186

Provisions have been allocated between current and non-current as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

Current 098 o9
Non-current 0.7 o7
16 16

Dilapidations

The Group operates from a number of leasehold premises under full repainng leases. The provision recagnises that repairs are
required to put the bulldings back into the state of repair required under the leases Currently, these leases are expected to
exptre between 2011 and 2018

Closure Costs
The Group terminates specific trading units when they are not deemed viable to continue The provision recognises the expected
costs associated with these closures

22, DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax 15 calculated in full on temporary differences under the hability method usimng a tax rate of 27% (2003 28%)
The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as shown below*

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m fm £m £m

As at 1 January 2010 11.2 133 {7.4) (59
Adjustment to Prior Year Defarred Taxation 13 - 08 03)
Change of Rate 01 - - -
Charged/{credited) to Income Statement {note 4} 01 o2 a8 0 6)
Charged to statement of Comprehensive Income in respect
of pension scheme liabilities (note 28) 28 23 20 (0 6}
Adustment to statement of Comprehensive Income with respect
to pnor year pension scheme babilities {1.6) - {1.3} -
Creditad to statement of Comprehensive Income with respect
to denvative intervals (0.6) - (0.6) -
As at 31 December 2010 13.3 112 5.7 {74

The deferred tax credited to eguity during the current and prior year related to the deferred tax movement on the pension
habilty

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving nse to deferred
tax assets because It 1s probable that there will be future taxable profits available

The movements on defamred tax assets and habilities (pnor to the offsetting of balances within the sarme junsdiction as
perrnitted by IAS 12) during the period are shown below Deferred tax assets and kabilties are only ofiset where there 1s &
legally enforceable nght of offset and there 15 an intention to sattle the balance net

Group
Deterred tax habilties
Acceleratad tax
depreciation Capital gains Total
£m £m £m
As at 1 January 2010 208 32 240
Charged to Income Statement 03 - 03
As at 31 December 2010 211 32 243
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (contnued)

Deferred tax assets Short
Employes term timing
benafits differencas Total
£ £m £m
As at 1 January 2010 (102} 26) {12 8)
Adjustment to Pnor Year 18 (0 5) i3
Other ltems _ 01 01
Charged/{credited) to Income Statement - {©2) 02
Charged/{cradited) to Statement of Comprehensive Income 12 {0 6) 08
As at 31 Decemnber 2010 72 (3 8) {11 0)
Net deferred tax lability
As at 31 December 2010 133
As at 31 December 2009 112
Company
Deferred tax assets
Employes Accsisrated tax
benefits Provisions depreciation Total
Em £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2010 52) 21 01) 74
Adjustment to Prior Year 14 08 - 08
Charged to Income Statement - 08 - 08
Charged/{credited) to Statement
of Comprehensive Intome 07 (0 6) - 01
As at 31 December 2010 31) 25 {0 1) (633
As at 31 December 2009 (7 4)

23. SHARE CAPITAL

2010 2009

Group and an Shares £m Shares £m
Authonsed

Ordinary shares of 5p each 480,000,000 240 480,000,000 240
Allotted, called up and fully paid

ordinary shares of 5p each

As at 1 January 383,527,608 192 181,670,573 91
Allotted on placing and placing and open offer - - 201,856,192 161
Allotted under share option schemes 52,298 - 843 -
As at 31 December 383,576,806 19.2 383,527,608 192

Potential Issues of Ordinary Shares
Options on 934,966 ordinary shares in relation to the employee share save scheme lapsed or were forferted dunng 2010

The number of shares subject to options, the penods in which they were granted and the penods in which they may be exercised
are given below

Exorcise 2010 2009

price Exercise Number Number

Year of pence period {Sp Shares) {5p Shares)
2008 PSP - 2011-2018 1,618,000 1,619,000
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23. SHARE CAPITAL {continued)

Employee ShareSave Scheme

The employee ShareSave scheme was available te all eligible employees and was based on Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings
contracts with options exercisable within a peniod from the conclusion of a three yaar term as appropnate from the date of
grant Under the terms and conditions of this scheme, for every month (up to no more than six months) an employee fails to
contribute the agreed monthly amount deterrnined under the rules of the schemae, the last date exercisable will be delayed

by one month The latest grant under the ShareSave scheme was mades In the year ended 2009 No further grants have been
made under this scheme Qptions outstanding under this scheme at 31 December 2010 were 6,000,782 (2009 €,988,046)

The totat expense included within operating profit from continuing operations in respect of cash-settled payments was £nil
(2009 Enil

24. SHARE PREMIUM

Group and Company £m
As at 1 January 2009 62
Anging on 1ssue of new shares 67 4
As at 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 736

25. CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Group and Company £m
As at 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 148
26. OTHER RESERVE
Group Company
£m £m
As at 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 14) (11}

27. RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company

Em £m

As at 1 January 2009 541 236
Net profit/(loss) for the year BO {11 4)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes (9 4) @7%
Fair value on denvative instruments {09) 09
Deferred taxation on pension habilty 23 06
As at 31 December 2009 541 B2
Net profit for the year 229 45
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes 38 20
Deferrad taxation on pension liability (12 07
Dmdends to shareholders 23 23)
Farr value on derivative instruments 23 {23)
Deferred taxation on denvatrve instruments [¢X:] 06
As at 31 December 2010 756 100

Group retained eamings include £17 1m {2009 £17 1m) of nen-distnbutable reserves relating to properties which had been
rovalued under UK GAAP, but treated as deemed cost under IFRS
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28. PENSIONS

Pension Scheme - The Lookers Pension Plan

The pension plan “The Lookers Fenston Plan”, which 1s a defined benefit scheme, provides benefits based on final pensionable
salary The Lookers Pension Plan, which 1s a funded scheme, 1s administered by Willam M Mercer Uimited The scheme has been
registered with the Regestrar of Pensions The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, being hetd in
separate funds by the Trustees of the Lookers Pension Plan

The Group has applied IAS 19 (Rewvised 2004) to this scheme and the following disclosures relate to this standard The Group
racognises any actuanal gaing and losses in each penod in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The pension (gan)/charge for the scheme for 2010 was £(0 1m) {2009 £2 3m)
A valuation update was made as at 31 December 2010 by a qualified independent actuary to take account of the LAS 18
requirements Scheme liabilities have been calculated using a consistent projected unit valuation method and compared to the

scheme’s assets at their 31 December market value

Based con actuanal advice and using the assumptions below in calculating the scheme's habilities, the total value of these habilities
under AS 19 are £80 4m at 31 December 2010 {2009 £79 6m)

The far value of assets of the scheme and the expected rates of return on each class of assets are

Expected Market Expected Market

rate of return value rate of retum value

2010 2010 2009 2009

% £m % £m

Equities 7.0 453 75 429
Bonds 5.6 21.7 52 182
Cash 0.5 1.7 05 03
Total farr value of assets 637 614

The overall net deficit between the assets of the Group's defined benefit scheme and the actuanal habilities of the scheme which
has been recognised on the balance sheet are as follows

2010 2008 2008 2007 2008

£m fm £m fm £m

Fair value of scheme assets 687 614 555 66 8 633
Actuanal value of scheme liabilitres {80.4} {79 6) (71 6) {76 Q) 74 8)
Deficit in the scheme {117 {18 2) (16 1} 12 (11 5)
Related deferred tax asset (note 22) a1 51 45 31 34

Net pension hability (8.6) {(131) {11 6) 1) B
Expenence adjustments in plan habilities - - {4 6) - -
Experience adjustments in plan assets 26 51 (17 1) (11) 30

The amounts recognised in the Income Statements are as follows:

2010 2000

£m £m

Cumrent service cost 0.7 07
Net (qams)losses on curtaiiments and settlements [1.3) 03
Total included 1n administrative expenses {0.6) 10
Interest on obligation 46 45
Expected return on scheme assets (4.1} 32
Total included in finance costs (note 2) 0.5 13
Total defined benefit incomeyexpenses {0.1) 23
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28, PENSIONS {contimuedh)

Changes in tha presant valus of the defined benefit abligation are as follows:

2010 2009
£m fm

Opening defined benefit obhgation 79.8 716
Service cost 0.7 07

Contnbutions by employees 03 03
interest cost 46 46
Actuanal losses 05 88
(Gains)losses on curtailments and settlement 1.3} 03
Benefits paid {4.0) 67
Closing defined benefit obhgahion 80.4 796
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Opening farr value of scheme assats 814 555
Expected return 42 32
Actuartat gains 26 51

Contributions by employer 4.0 40
Contnbutions by employees Q3 03
Benefits paid {3.8) B7
Closing fair value of scheme assets 687 614

The actual return on scheme assets was £6 8m {2009 £8 4m loss) None of the scheme’s assets were invested in Lookers plc
or property occupied by Lookers plc In addition to the 14.4% of pensionable payroll to fund aceruing pensions, the Company
contnbuted an additional £3 O0m in 2010 (2009 £1 6m} The Group expects to mamtain a similar level of pension contnbutions in

2011
2010 20090
£m £m
Total amount of actuarial gains/{losses) recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the year 2.0 37
Cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income at the year end {14.4) (16 4)
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total
scheme assets are as follows:
Equites 66.0% 69 9%
Bonds 31.5% 29 6%
Cash 25% 05%
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance shaot date {expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:
2010 2009
Discount rate 5.6% 59%
Expected return on assets 68% 6 8%
Future salary mcreases 2.95% 30%
Future pensicn increases 2.3% 23%
Life expectancy at age 65 for
current pensioners - males 864 B63
current pensioners - females 89.3 892
future pensioners - males 873 87 2
future pensioners - females 90.1 916
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28. PENSIONS (continued)

Where investments are held in bonds and cash, the expected long-term rate of return 1s taken te be the yields generally prevailing
on such assets at the balance sheet date A higher rate of return 13 expected on equity Investments, based on the returns that have
been available historically The overall expected long-term rate of meturn on assets s then the average of these rates taking into
account the underlying asset portfolio of the pension plan

Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows:

£m £m
Defined benefit obligation 80.4 796
Scheme assets (68 7) (61 4)
Deficit "7 182
Experience gains on plan assets 2.6 51

Defined Contnbution Scheme

The Group and Company provide penston arrangements for certain Directors and employees under defined contnbution schemes
and has a defined contnbution Stakeholder Pension Scheme for employeas The Income Statement account charge for the year
in respect of defined contribution schemes was £1 2m (2009 £1 2m)

Pension Scheme - The Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan

The Dutton Forshaw Group’s pansion plan “The Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan”, which 1s a defined benefit scheme prowidas
benefits based on final pensionable salary The Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan, which i1s a funded schems, 18 administered by
Equiniti Financial Services Limted The scheme has been registered with the Registrar of Pensions The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, being held m separate funds by the Trustees of the Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan
The Group has applted IAS 19 (Revised 2004) to this scheme and the following disclosures relate to this standard The Group
recognises any actuanal gains and losses in each penod in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

A valuation update was made as at 31 Decamber 2010 by a qualfied mdependent actuary to take account of the IAS 19 requirements
Scheme habiities have been calculated using a consistent projected unit valuation method and compared to the scheme's assets
at thewr 31 December market value

Based on actuanal advice and using the assumptions below in calculating the scheme's liabilities, the total value of these habiltes
under LAS 1915 £88 4m at 31 December 2010 (2008 £84 5m)

The far value of assets of the scheme and the expected rates of retumn on each class of assets are

Expected Market Expacted Markat

rate of retum value rate of retum valua

2010 2010 2009 2009

% £m % £m

Absaolute / Target Return Funds 7.0 200 - -
Equities 70 243 75 394
Corporate Bonds 5.6 13.8 585 109
Gilts 4.0 145 45 16 4
Cash 05 0.4 05 04
Total farr value of assets 73.1 67 1

The overall net defict between the assets of the Group's defined benefit scheme and the actuarial labilities of the scheme, which
has been recognised on the balance shest is as follows

2010 2009 2008
£m €m £m

Fair value of scheme asssts 731 67 2 615

Actuarial value of scheme habilities (88 4) (84 5) @3N

Deficit in the scheme 15.3) (73 (11 6)

Related deferred tax asset (note 22) 4.1 49 az 71
Net pension hability {112 (12 9) 8 4)

Experience adjustrents in plan Labilihes - - -

Experience adjustments in plan assets 3.9 55 (15 5)
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28. PENSIONS (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Income Statements are as follows:

2010 2009
£m £m

Current service cost 0.4 03
Net gaing on curtailments and settlements - Q4
Total included in administrative expenses 04 07
Interest on cbhgation 4.9 46
Expected return on scheme assets 4 3) (3 B)
Total in¢luded in finance costs {note 2) 0.6 10
Total defined benefit expenses 1.0 17
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2010 2009

£m £m

Opening defined benefit obligation 84.5 731
Service cost 0.4 03
Contributions by employees 03 03
Liabiities extinguished on settlements - {22)
Losses on curtaiiment and settlements - 04
Interest cost 4.9 46
Actuanal losses 2.2 12
Benefits paid {3.9) (32}
Closing defined benefit obligation 884 845
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:
Opening far value of scheme assets 671 615
Expected return 4.3 36
Actuarial gans 39 55
Contnbutions by employer 1.4 16
Assets distributed on settlements - (2 2)
Contnbutions by employees 0.3 03
Benelits pad (3.9) 32)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 73.1 67 1

The actual return on schems assets was £8 2m (2008 £9 1m loss) None of the scheme's assets were invested i Lookers plc or
property occupied by Lookers pic

2010 2009
£m &m
Total amount of actuarial gains/{losses) recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the year 18 57)
Cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income at the year end {5.1} {6 9)
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28. PENSIONS {continLed)

The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total

scheme assets are as follows: 2010 2009
Equities 33 3% 58 7%
Absolute / Target Return Funds 27.4% -
Corporate Bonds 18.1% 16 2%
Gilts 19 9% 24 5%
Cash 0.3% 06%

Pnncipal actiarial assumptions at the balance sheet date {expressed as weighted averages) are as follows,

2010 2009
Discount rate 5.6% 59%
Expected return on assets 6.1% 65%
Future salary increases 2.95% 30%
Future pension increases 2.95% 30%
Life expectancy at age 65 for
current pensioners - males 864 863
current pensioners - females 89.3 892
future pensioners - males 87.2 ar2
future pensioners - fernales 90,1 g00

Where mvestments are held m bonds and cash, the expected long-term rate of retum 1a taken to be the yields generally prevaling on
such assets at the balance sheet date A higher rate of retum is expected on equity investments, which s based more on realistic future
expectations than on the returns that have been avalable hestoncally  The overall expected long-tesm rate of retum on assets s then the
average of these rates taking rto account the underlyng asset portfolic of the pension plan

Amounts for the current period are as follows: £m £m
Defined benefit obligation 83.4 845
Scheme assets {73.1) {67 1)
Deficit 153 174
Experience losses on plan assets 39 85

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company bears certain administrative costs and interest costs centrally which are recharged to the Group. In addition, the

Company charges management charges and receves dmdends from its subsidianes The balances with Group undertakings are
summansed in the table below

Amounts owed by Group Amounts owed to Group
undertakings (Nots 13) undertekings (Note 17}
2009 2010 20049

£m £m £m
Bolling Investments Limited 53.8 524 - -
DSM Autos Limited 655 655 - g1
Charles Hurst Limited 10.6 58 - -
Charles Hurst Motors Limited 0.7 - - -
Ptatts Harris Limited 131 10 - -
FPS Distribution Limitec 53 62 - -
Ferrans Pisten Service Limited [+X:) 23 - -
Apec Braking Limited 1.4 10 - -
BTN Turbocharger Service Lmited 0.7 03 - -
Lookers Motor Group Limited 35.8 B9 40.4 141
Lookers Brrmingham Limited ag 02 - -
MB South Limnted 09 - 0.4 19
Dutton Forshaw Motor Company Limited 101 128 7.7 74
Domant Companies 0.8 06 1.0 10
191.1 185 0 49.5 24 5

Key management compensation is included mnote 7
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The objectives, policies and strategies for holding or issuing financial Instruments adopted by the Board are grven m the Directors’
Report. Details regarding the Group's denvative financial instruments at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are given in note 20 The
Group's other financial assets and habilities are detalled below

Fair Values

The fair values of the Group's trade recervables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables (which mclude liabilities m respect of
interest-beanng consignment stock), short-term prowvisions and loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed
to approximate to their book value. The falr value of the Group's non-current proviston 1s not materially different from rts fair value

The Group’s ather non-current financial liabilies are all subject to floating interest rates and so their far value also approximates to
book value

Maturity of Financial Liabilities

The maturty profile of the camying amount of the Group’s non-current financial habilities at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are given
in note 20

Borrowing Facilities

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing faciles available at 31 Decernber 2010 and 2009 which exqure

2010 2008

£m £m
Within one to two years 533 -
Within two to five years - 529

The above facilities represent loans and overdrafts, for which the faciithies have been confied

Interest Rate Profile
Financial assets compnse cash of £24 3m (2009 £12 3m)
An analysis of the Group's loans and overdrafts between fixed and floating rates i1s given below

2010 2009

Financial Babiities Financial habyiities

£m £m

Floating Rate 80.9 913

Interest rates on the Group’s ficating rate kabilties are based on the London Interbank rate. At 31 December 2010 all of the Group's bank
loans and overdrafts are potentially exposed to re-pneing within 12 months of the balance shest date (2009 12 months)

Foreign Currencies
The majonty of the Group's actvities are transacted in sterling although some of its purchases are made in US Doltars and Euros, The

Group manages the foreign currency nsk associated with these foreign currency purchases through the use of forward contracts as a
commercial hedge. The Group has not sought hedge accounting under IAS 39 m respect of these contracts

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

210 2008
Property Plant & equipment Property Plant & equipment

Group £m Em £m_ £m
Commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases expinng
Within one year 8.4 13 79 11
Within two to five years 35.5 12 345 0g
After five yoars 44.5 - 469 -

884 2.5 893 20

32. CONTINGENT GAIN
Additional amounts may be rece:vable from HM Revenue & Customs in respect of overpayments of VAT in previous years
These will not be recognised until they have been agreed It is not practical to estimate the potantial gain at the year end

33. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Cn 4 January 2011 Charles Hurst Limited, a wholly owned substdiary of Lookers plc, bought the entire share caprtal of Audi
Centro Limted, a Company incorporated in the Republic of ireland The Company’s man trads 1s to buy and sell vehicles and
services under the Audi Brand within the Dublin South Market area The acguistion 18 seen as an additional complementary
franchise to our Motor division The consideration for the purchase was 800,000 euros
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ERANCHISES

Alfa Romeo
Cardiff
Sheffield

Aston Martin
Belfast

Audi
Dublin

Bentley
Belfast

Chevrolet
Liverpool
Warrington
Yardley

Chrysler, Jeep, Dodge
Belfast

Citroén
Belfast
Blackpool
Liverpool
Newport
Praston

Ferrari
Belfast

Fiat
Stockport

Ford

Braintree

Chelmsford

Clacton

Colchester

Sheffield North
Sheffield South

South Weodham Ferrers
Sudbury

Witham

Honda
Bexleyheath
Derby
Liverpool
Nottingham
Southport
Warrington

Hyundai
Dundonald
Motherweli
Preston

Jaguar

Belfast

Glasgow

London - Park Royal
Motherwell

Kia
Belfast
Colchester
Sheffield
Stockport

Trading Outlets and Interests
IN Major Subsidiary Companies

Land Rover
Belfast

Bishop's Stortford
Chelmsford
Colchaster
Glasgow

London - Battersea
London - Park Royat

Motherwell

Lexus
Belfast
Hatfield

Maserah
Belfast

Mazda
Motherwell

Mercedes-Benz
Ashford

Bnghton
Eastbourne
Gatwick
Maidstone
Rechilt
Tonbndge

Nissan

Belast

Chester
Newtownabbey

Peugeot
Betfast
Cardiff
Motherwell
Newport

Renault
Belfast
Chelmsford
Chester
Celchester
Newtownabbey
Newtownards
Stockport

Saab
Chester
Liverpoot

Seat
Stockport

Skoda
Stockport

Smart
Bnghton
Gatwick
Mawdstone
Tonbndge

Toyota

Belfast
Chelmsford
Newtownabbey
Rayletgh
Romford

Vauxhall
Belfast
Birkenhead
Birmingham
Blackburn
Chester
Elilesmere Port
Lisbum
Liverpool
Portadown
Selly Oak
Speke

St. Helens
Wallasay
Warmngton
Yardley

Volkswagen
Battersea
Blackburn
Blackpool
Boston
Bumley
Darlington
Lingaln
Morden
Northallertcn
Preston
Teesside

Volvo
Colchester
Glasgow
Motherwell

USED CAR

Bristol
Burton-on-Trent
Belfast
Newtownabbey

MOTORCYCLES
BMW - Newtownabbey
Yamaha - Belfast

IYRES

Belfast - Boucher Road
Belfast - Sydenham Road
Coleraine

Dundonald

Ornagh

Portadown

Volvo Chelmsford
Mercedes Canterbury
Lexus Southend
Lexus Brnighton
Vauxhall Dundonald

LOOKERS LEASING
Harrogate
Manchester

PARTS DISTRIBUTION

FPS

Barlang
Brmingham
Bristol
Cardiff
Charlton
Colchester
Glasgow
Leeds
Leicester
Lverpoot
Luton
Mardstone
Manchester
Newcastle
Nottingham
Preston
Reading
Sheffield
Southampton
Staples Comer

Apec

Bristol

BTN Turbocharger
Uxbrdge

Darley Dale
Tuxford

Major Subsidiary
Companies

DSM Autos Limited

Bolling tnvestments Limited
Charles Hurst Limited

Charles Hurst Motors Limited
Leokers Motor Group Limited
Lookers Birmmgham Limited
MB South Limited

FPS Distnbution Limed
Apec Limited

BTN Turbocharger

Service Limited

Outton Forshaw Motor
Company Limited

Lookers Leasing Limited
Platts Harris Limited

Ferrans Piston Service Limited

Website: www.lookers.co.uk
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Five Year Becord

Year ended Year ended Year ended Yem ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decomber
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
em £m #m £m Em
Tumover 1,426 7 1,680 0 1,775 9 1,7430 1,883.8
Profit before tax, amortisation,
exceptional tems and debt 1ssue costs 26 4 245 140 283 33.6
Amortisation/impairment 8 (0 8) {4 5) a7 1.3)
Net exceptional itermns an D4) 2000 14 2) -
Far value on dervative mstruments - - (4 0) - -
Debt issue costs ©1 () ©4) 09 1.2
Profit/(loss) before taxation 214 230 (14 9) 115 3.1
Taxation {6 8) (6 6) (11) (3 5) 8.2
Profit/{loss) attributable to sharehclders 146 16 4 (16 0) 80 22.9
Equity dividend par shara*® 350p 402p 1 60p - 1.8p
Basic eamings/{loss) per ordinary share™ 813p 8 09p {7 68)p 279p 5.97p
Adjusted sarmings per ordmary share*** 1063p 9 81p 4 66p 7 32p 6.83p
As at year end
Shareholders’ interests
Share caprta) 90 91 91 192 19.2
Reserves
- non-distnbutable 364 378 368 1039 103.9
- distnbutable 589 64 6 370 370 58.5
Net assets 104 3 1115 829 1601 181.8

“Dmidends per share are based on intenm dividend patd and final dwvidend declared for the year

“Reprasented to mors accurately reflect the undarhying records

““The 2006-2008 numbers have not been re-stated for the bonus slement of the share i1ssues in 2009
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Notice of Meeting

Incorporated in England under the Comparies Act 1985 Registered No 111876

NQOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the one hundred and first Annual General Maeting of Lookers plc (the “Company™} will be held
at Lookers plc, 776 Chester Road, Stretford, Manchester, M32 0QH on Wednesday 25 May 2011 at 10 00am to transact the
business set out below Resolutions 1 ta 8 below will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions 9 to 12 will be proposed
as special rasolutions

1 To receive the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 together with the reports thereon of the Directors
and the Auditor

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 To declare a final dividend of 1.2p per ordinary shara

4 To re-elect as a Director Andrew Bruce, who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association
5 To re-elect as a Director Robin Gregson, who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association
& To re-appoint Deloitte LLP as Auditor

7 To authonse the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditor

Ordinary resolution = authority to allot shares

8 That the Directors are generally and uncondhonally authonsed pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to
axercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant rnights to subscnbe for or to convert any
secunty into such shares (“Allotrment Rights™}, but so that

(a) the maximum amount of shares that may be allotted or made the subject of Allotment Rights under this authorty are
shares with an aggregate nominal value of £6,393,543,

(b} this authonty shall expire on 25 November 2012 or, if earlier, on the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company;

{c) the Company may make any offer or agreement before such expiry which would or might require shares to be allotted
or Allotment Rights to be granted after such expiry; and

(d) all authorities vested in the Cirectors on the date of the notice of this mesting to aliot shares or to grant Allotment
Rights that rematn unexercised at the commencemaent of this meeting are ravoked

Special resclution - disapplication of pre-emption rights

9 That the Directors are empowered to allot equity secunties (as defined in Section 560 of the Companies Act 20086) pursuant
to the authonty conferred on them by resolution 8 in the notice of this meeting or by way of a sale of treasury shares as
Section 561 of that Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be kmited to

i) the allotment of equity securities In connection with any nghts issue or open offer (sach as referred to in the Financial
Services Authority’s listing rules) or any other pre-emptive offer that 1s open for acceptance for a penod detenmined by
the Directors to the holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company on the register of members at such fixed
record date as the Directors may determine In proportion to their holdings of ordinary shares in the capital of tha Company,
subject in each case to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or appropnate
in relation to fractions of such securities, treasury shares, any fegal or practical problems in relation to any termtory or the
requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange, and

(i} the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (i} above) of equity secunties having an aggregate nomnal value
of £959,031,

and shall expire when the authonty conferred on the Directors by rasolution B in the notice of this mesting expires, save that
the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agresment which would or might require equity secunbes to be aflotted
after such expiry
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Notice of Meeting

Special resolution - authority to purchase own shares on market

10 That the Company 1s generally and unconditionally authonsed pursuant to Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 to make
market purchases (as defined i Section 633 of that Act) of ordinary shares of 5p each in its caprtal, provided that

() the maximum aggregate number of such shares hereby authonsed to be purchased s 38,361,262 shares,

(@) the mimimum pnce {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for such a share s 5p,

{if) the maximum pnce (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for such a share is the maximum pnce permitted under
the Financial Service Authonty’s listing rules or, in the case of a tender offer (as refemred to in those rules), five per cent
above the average of the rmiddle market quotations for an ordinary share (as derived from the London Stock Exchange
Daily Official List) for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the terms of the tender offer

are announced,

(W) this authonty shall expire on 25 November 2012 or, if earlier, on the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company, and

(v before such expiry the Company may enter into such a contract to purchase shares which will or may require a purchase
to be complated after such expiry

Special resolubion ~ calling of general meetings on 14 clear days' notice

11 That any general meating of the Company that s not an Annual General Meeting may b called by not less than 14 clear days’
notice

Special resclution - adoption of new articles of association

12 That the regulations contained in the documant produced to the mesting and inttialled by the charman of the meeting for the
purpose of identification are adopted as the Company’s new articles of association in substitution for and to the exclusion of

(i} the Company's existing articles of association and (ii} all provisions of the Company's memerandumn of assoclation as
at 30 September 2009 treated by section 28 of the Gompanies Act 2006 as included at the date of this resolution n
the existing articles of association

Registered Office By order of the Board
776 Chester Road R. A. Gregson
Stretford Company Secretary
Manchester 9 March 2011

M32 0QH

Notes

1 The nght of a member of tha Company to vote at the Meeting will be determined by reference to the register of members A
member must be registered on that register as the holder of ordinary shares by 6 00 pm on 23 May 2011 in order tc be entitled
to attend and vote at the meeting as a member in respect of those shares

2 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 1s entitled to appoint & proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead A
member may nominate a proxy of histher choice who need not be a member of the Company

3 A member may appomnt more than one proxy to attend the Mesting, provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exerctse nghts
in respect of different shares held by the member

4 Appontment of a proxy will not preciude a member from attending, speaking and voting at the Meeting should he/she wish
to do so

5 Inaccordance with Section 325 of the Companies Act 2006, the nght to appomnt proxies does not apply to persons nominated
by a member of the Company to receve information nghts under Section 146 of that Act. Nominated persons who have been
sent a copy of this notice of mesting may have a nght under an agreement betwean hinvher and that member to be appointed,
or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the Meeting If they have no such right, or do not wish to exercise it, they
may have a right under such an agreement to give instructions to the member as to the exerciss of voting rights Nominated
persons should contact the registered member by whom they were nominated in respect of these arrangements
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Notice of Meeting

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electroric proxy appomntment service may do
so by using the procedures in the CREST manual. CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members and those
CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to ther CREST sponsor or voting senice
provider(s) who will be abla to take the appropnate action on therr behalf

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate CREST message
(a “CREST Proxy Instruction” must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & lreland Limited's
specifications and must contam the Information required for such instructions, as descnbed in the CREST Manual. The
message, regardiess of whether it constitutes the appomntment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a
previously appointment proxy, must, n order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be raceved by the issuer's agent {({D RA10)
by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in this notice For this purpose, the tme of receipt will be taken
1o be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the mossage by the CREST Applications Host) from which the
registrars are able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescnbed by CREST After this time, any
change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means
CREST members and, where applicable, ther CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that Euroclear UK
& Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings
and bmitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It is the responsibility of the CREST
member concemed to take {or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed
a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor ¢r voting service provider{s) take(s) such action as shall be
necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time  In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are refarred, in particular, to those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances sét out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertified Securities Regulations 2001

Caprta Registrars mantain the Company’s share register They also provide a telephone helpling serice on 0871 664 0300
calls cost 10p 2 minute plus network extras Lmnes are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Fnday H you have any
quenes about voting or about your shareholding, please contact Capta Registrars

Members have the nght to ask questions relating to the business having dealt with at the Meeting, which in accordance with
Section 319A of the Companies Act 2006, end subject to certain exceptions, the Company must cause to be answered

It 1s possible that, pursuant to requests made by shareholders under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2606, the Company
may be requirsd to publish on its websrte a statement setling out any matter that such shareholders propose to raise at the
Meeting relating to the audit of the Company’s latest audited accounts The Company may not require the shareholders
requesting any such website publication to pay rts expenses in complying with Sections 527 and 528 of the Companies Act
2006 Where the Company is required to place a statement on its website under Section 527 of that Act, it must forward
the statemaent to the Company’s auditors not later than the time when it makes the statement avaiable on the webste The
business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any statement that the Company has been required
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on its website

Members have the night () to require the Company to give notice of a resolution to be moved at the meeting In accordance
with section 338 of the Companies Act 2006 and (i} to require the Company to include a matter in the business to be dealt
with at the mesting in accordance with section 338A of that Act

A Form of Proxy is enclosed for use by shareholders.

To be valid, a Form of Proxy must be lodged with the Company's Registrars, Proxy Department, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, BR3 4TU not later than 10 00am on 23 May 2011

The Company’s 1ssued share capial on @ March 2011 {the latest practicable date pnor to the pninting of this document) was
383,612,621 ordinary shares of 5p each, such shares carmrying one vote each, such that the total vating rights m the Company
on that date were 383,612,621

Information relating to the Meating which the Company 1s required by the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website in
advance of the Mesting may ba viewed at www lookerspic co uk. A member may not use any slsctronic address provided by
the Company n this doecument or with any proxy eppomtment form or in any website for communicating with the Company
for any purpose in relation to the Meesting other than as expressly stated in it
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Shareholders, Bankers and

Professional Advisors

Share Quotes

Share pnces of the ordinary shares are shown in
the Financial Times and also appear in several
other newspapers

Shareholder Bonefits

We operate a schema which provides all registered
prnvate shareholders holkding a meimum of 5,000
ordinary shares with an addittonal £100 discount

off the pnce of any new motor vehicle purchased
from any of the Group’s dealerships The private
registered shareholder negotiates his/her purchase
of the new vehicle in the normal way and the £100 is
an additional discount cbtained from the Company
Secretary

Electronic Communication

Capita Registrars prowide a share portal senace, which
allows shareholders to access a vanety of services
onbne, including viewing shareholdings, buying ang
selling shares online, registenng change of address
details and bank mandates to have dwdends pa:d
directly into your bank account

In addition, shareholders can register an emall address
and elect to receive future Company reports and
accounts in electromic form

Any shareholder who wishes to register with Capita to

take advantage of this service should wvisnt
www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders
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Principal Bankers

Bank of Ireland

Barclays Bank PLC

HSBC Bank plc

Lloyds Bankung Group

National Australia Bank

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Ragistrars end Transfer Office
Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Audrtor

Delotte LLP

PO Box 500

2 Hardman Street
Manchester MB0 2AT

Stockbrokers
Numis Securities Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building

10 Paternoster Square
London EC4M 7LT

Peel Hunt LLP
111 Old Broad Street
London EC2M 1AP

Financial Advisors

NM Rothschlld & Sons Limited
82 King Street

Manchester M2 4WQ




